
Site Plan & Architectural 
Commission  

Agenda  
June 5, 2020  

Commission Members 

Jeff Bender, Chair 

Bill Chmelir, Vice Chair 

Jim Catt 

David Culbertson 

Bob Neathamer 

Marcy Pierce 

Jim Quinn 

Milo Smith 

 

 
 

City of Medford 

Council Chambers,  

Third Floor, City Hall 

411 W. 8th Street 

Medford, OR  97501 

(541) 774-2380 

Regular Commission meetings are held on 

the first and third Fridays of every month 

Beginning at 12:00 Noon 

1



   
  

   

 

 
June 5, 2020      

12:00 P.M.         

Zoom Virtual Webinar 
 

 

Office of the Governor Executive Order No. 20-16 require that the governing body of a public body 

[as defined by ORS 192.610(3) and (4)] shall hold public meetings and hearings by telephone, video 

or through some other electronic or virtual means whenever possible. To attend virtually, tune into 

Charter Channel 181 or live stream at the City website www.cityofmedford.org or on RVTV at 

rvtv.sou.edu. 

 
10. Roll Call 
  
20. Consent Calendar / Written Communications  

20.3 AC-20-021/E-20-108 Final Order for the construction of a 3,000 square foot office building within 

the existing foundation footprint located at 629 Franquette Street and a request for relief from the 

requirement to construct a public sidewalk on Earhart Street. The subject site is located at the 

northeasterly corner of Franquette Street and Earhart Street within the C-H (Heavy Commercial) zoning 

district (371W30DB TL 5500). 

30. Approval or Correction of the Minutes.  

 30.1 Consideration for approval of minutes from the May 15, 2020, meeting. 

  

40. Oral Requests and Communications. 

The Site Plan and Architectural Commission is only accepting written comments and not verbal com-

ments, with the exception of land use applicants, who will be given the opportunity to attend the meet-

ing electronically. Public comments will be accepted via first class mail or email until 10:00 a.m. on 6-5-

2020. Please email general comments to debbie.strigle@cityofmedford.org.  Public hearing testimony 

pertaining to the agenda items should be sent to the project planner’s email listed by each agenda item. 

50. Public Hearings 

COMMENTS ARE LIMITED TO A TOTAL OF 10 MINUTES FOR APPLICANTS AND/OR THEIR REPRESENTATIVES.  YOU MAY REQUEST 

A 5-MINUTE REBUTTAL TIME.   

 New Business. 

 50.1 AC-20-097 Consideration of a 9,000 square foot commercial structure on 6.40 acres located at 5274 

Crater Lake Avenue in the C-H (Heavy Commercial) zoning district (361W32C400); Applicant, Crater Lake 

Rentals, LLC; Agent, Richard Stevens & Associates, Inc.; Planner, Steffen Roennfeldt. 

steffen.roennfeldt@cityofmedford.org  

 50.2 AC-20-099 Consideration of plans for the construction of Joseph Office Park – Building III, a 8,400 

square foot building on a 1.15-acre parcel located on the north side of East Barnett Road, approximately 

650 feet west of North Phoenix Road (3531 East Barnett Road), within the C-S/P (Service Commercial – 

Professional Office) zoning district (371W28DD TL 900). Applicant, Spectrum Orthotics; Agent, Oregon 

Architecture, Inc.; Planner, Dustin Severs. dustin.severs@cityofmedford.org 

SITE PLAN & ARCHITECTURAL 
COMMISSION AGENDA 

2

http://www.cityofmedford.org/
mailto:debbie.strigle@cityofmedford.org
mailto:steffen.roennfeldt@cityofmedford.org
mailto:dustin.severs@cityofmedford.org


Site Plan & Architectural Commission Agenda 
June 5, 2020 
 

 
 

Page 2 of 2  
 

60. Written Communications None. 

  

70. Unfinished Business None. 

 

80. New Business None. 

 
90. Report from the Planning Department  

 
100. Messages and Papers from the Chair 
 

110. Propositions and Remarks from the Commission 
 

120. Adjournment  

3



4



5



6



7



8



STAFF REPORT  
for a Type-III quasi-judicial decision: Site Plan and Architectural Review 

Project Crater Lake Rentals  
 Applicant: Crater Lake Rentals, LLC; Agent: Richard Stevens & Associates 

File no. AC-20-097 

To Site Plan & Architectural Review Commission for 06/05/2020 hearing 

From Steffen Roennfeldt, Planner III 

Reviewer Kelly Evans, Assistant Planning Director 

Date May 27, 2020  

BACKGROUND 

Proposal 

Consideration of a 9,000 square foot commercial structure on 6.40 acres located at 
5274 Crater Lake Avenue in the C-H/AC (Heavy Commercial/Airport Area of Concern) 
zoning district (361W32C400).  

Vicinity Map 

   

9



Subject Site Characteristics 

GLUP CM Commercial 
Zoning C-H Heavy Commercial 
Overlay AC Airport Area of Concern   
Use Mike’s RV Service & Hunt Tractor Commercial Uses 

Surrounding Site Characteristics 

North Zone: C-H  
 Use: Vacant  

South Zone: GC (General Commercial County Zoning)  
 Use: Auto Body Shop  

East  Zone: EFU (Exclusive Farm Use County Zoning) 
 Use: Vacant  

West Zone: I-G (General Industrial) 
 Use: Boat Shop 

Related Projects 

ZC-99-046  Zone Change from County Zoning to Heavy Commercial  
AC-01-036  Site Plan Review for existing Commercial Structure 
PA-19-046  Pre-Application 

Applicable Criteria 

Medford Municipal Code §10.200(E). Site Plan and Architectural Review Approval 
Criteria 

(1)  The Site Plan and Architectural Commission, SPAC – Type III Review, shall approve 
a site plan and architectural review application for a commercial or industrial 
development, if it can find that the proposed development conforms, or can be 
made to conform through the imposition of conditions, with the following criteria: 

 (a) The proposed development is compatible with uses and development that 
exist on adjacent land, and 

 (b) The proposed development complies with the applicable provisions of all city 
ordinances or the Site Plan and Architectural Commission has approved (an) 
exception(s) as provided in Section 10.186. 

  

10



Approval Authority 

This is a Type III land use decision. The Commission is the approving authority under 
MLDC 10.110(H).  

Corporate Names 

Fred Owen is listed as the Registered Agent & Member for Crater Lake Rentals, LLC. 
Barbara Owen is listed as a Member according to the Oregon Secretary of State 
Business Registry.  

Clark Stevens is listed as the Registered Agent, President and Secretary of Richard 
Stevens & Associates, Inc. according to the Oregon Secretary of State Business 
Registry. 

ISSUES AND ANALYSIS 

Background 

Existing Development 

The subject site consists of one 6.40 acre parcel located on the east side of Crater 
Lake Avenue. There are three existing structures on the site totaling approximately 
16,500 square feet. The existing structures are home to various commercial uses and 
are accessed via a centrally located driveway. 

 

Figure 1 - Driveway serving existing and future uses 

11



Current Proposal 

The applicant proposes infill development on the site consisting of one commercial 
structure, 9,000 square feet in size, and utilizing the existing access and utility 
connections.  

 
Figure 2 - Proposed Development 

DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS 

The site development standards for commercial land are found in MLDC Section 
10.721. The table below demonstrates that the site meets the minimum requirements 
for development. 

  

12



Commercial – Industrial Site Development Table (MLDC 10.721) 

C-H Zone Allowed/Required Proposed 

Height 35 feet 18 feet 

Lot Coverage 60% ~8% 

Setback (front) 10 feet 200+ feet 

Setback  
(street side yard) 10 feet n/a 

Setback  
(rear and side 

yards) 

none 
210 feet (East) 

150 feet (South) 
100+ feet (North) 

 

As shown in the Site Development Table above, it can be found that the proposed 
building identified on submitted site plan meets the bulk standards for the C-H zoning 
district as found in Article V of the Medford Land Development Code. 

Parking 

Since the future use of the proposed structure is yet to be determined, parking 
demand was based on the regular numbers for a typical commercial use less than 
25,000 square feet in size which requires a minimum of 4.5 spaces per 1,000 square 
feet. 

Parking Table (MLDC 10.743-751) 

 Required Provided 

Vehicle Spaces Min. 41 43 

Bicycle Spaces Min. 5 5 

 

The site meets the minimum requirement of off-street parking for a commercial use 
within the Heavy Commercial zoning district. Although it is mentioned in the 
applicant’s narrative, the site plan does not identify bike parking locations. It will be a 
condition of approval to identify at least five bike parking spaces per the MLDC 
Sections 10.747 through 10.751. 

  

13



Landscaping 

Parking Lot Landscaping (MLDC 10.746[3]) 

 Required Shown 

Area (square feet) 895 1572 

Trees 5 6 

Shrubs 11 53 

The parking lot landscaping requirements per MLDC 10.746(3) are met. 

Pedestrian Access 

The infill site does not front directly onto public right-of-way and, therefore, no 
pedestrian walkways are required to connect to the street from the proposed 
structure.  

A pedestrian walkway is shown to connect to the eastern-most existing structure as 
can be seen below. It will be a condition of approval to connect the infill site to the 
south-westerly structure with a pedestrian walkway connection as per MLDC 10.772 
through 10.776. 

 

Figure 3 - missing pedestrian connection 

14



Architecture 

The applicant’s findings state: 

The architecture of the proposed structure is quite similar and possibly updated 
compared to adjacent commercial structures in the area that were originally 
developed to Jackson County standards, and can be considered compatible with 
existing development on adjacent parcels.  

The proposed building is of traditional commercial style, with CMU scored face block 
siding with varied natural tones to provide for a varied visual appearance. Front 
entries for customers are provided with wing walls and covered canopies. This feature 
aids in breaking the building mass of the structure to not have a large visual front 
elevation. Roofing is typical standing seam metal composition.  

Varied colors and earth tones will be used to provide visual interest and add depth; 
the CMU face block will have dark brown/charcoal and light brown tones. The roofing 
will be white in color with a metal canopy colored blue. This proposed structure will 
look nearly identical to the existing structure containing Mike’s RV service and Pacific 
Mobile Home Supply to demonstrate how this complements the existing 
development on site. 

 
Figure 4- Proposed South-West Elevation 

Floodplain (Exhibit X) 

The property is currently within a mapped ‘A’ zone without Base Flood Elevations. Per 
the National Flood Insurance Program Regulations, any development and vertical 
structures and utilities shall comply with 44 CFR 60.3(b).  

The application submittals show that a Letter of Map Amendment (LOMA) is being 
requested (Exhibit S). If a LOMA is issued, a copy shall be provided prior to 
development. If a LOMA removes the subject area from the floodplain then some of 
the requirements may not apply. 

Department and Agency Comments 

Comments were received from the Public Works Department, Fire Department, the 
Building Safety Department, Medford Water Commission, Jackson County Roads, 

15



Oregon Department of Aviation, Jackson County Airport Authority, Rogue Valley 
Sewer Services. Conditions for compliance have been included where applicable. 

Rogue Valley International – Medford Airport (Exhibit Q) 

Rogue Valley International Airport requests an Avigation, Noise and Hazard Easement 
to be required as part of the permit process. In the 2010 LUBA decision on Michelle 
Barnes vs. City of Hillsboro and the Port of Portland, Nollan/Dolan findings are 
required to support the request (LUBA No. 2010-011). None were provided; therefore, 
a condition requiring compliance with the airport’s request for an Avigation, Noise 
and Hazard Easement has not been included.  

Oregon Department of Fish & Wildlife (Exhibit P) 

The ODFW acknowledged that the site is outside the City’s riparian protection area 
but suggest to protect as much riparian vegetation as possible during and after 
construction.  The applicant acknowledged in the findings that they are planning on 
retaining the vegetation along Swanson Creek. 

COMMITTEE COMMENTS 

No comments were received by a committee, such as BPAC. 

No other issues were identified by staff.  

FINDINGS AND CONCLUSIONS 

Staff has reviewed the applicant’s findings and conclusions (Exhibit I) and 
recommends the Commission adopt the findings as presented.  

RECOMMENDED ACTION 

Adopt the findings as recommended by staff and direct staff to prepare the final order 
for approval of AC-20-097 per the staff report dated May 27, 2020, including Exhibits 
A through X and: 

- A condition to demonstrate compliance with MLDC 10.747 through 10.751 
regarding bicycle parking 

- A condition to add pedestrian connectivity between the two southerly 
structures and the proposed development. 

EXHIBITS 

A Conditions of Approval, dated May 27, 2020 

16



B Site Plan, received April 1, 2020 
C Floor Plan, received April 1, 2020 
D Roof Plan, received April 1, 2020 
E Elevations, received April 1, 2020 
F Landscape & Irrigation Plans, received April 1, 2020 
G Aerial, received April 1, 2020 
H Zoning Maps, received April 1, 2020 
I Applicant’s Findings, received April 1, 2020 
J Public Works Report, dated May 6, 2020 
K Fire Department Report, dated May 6, 2020 
L Building Department Comments, dated May 6, 2020 
M Medford Water Commission Report, dated May 6, 2020 
N Rogue Valley Sewer Services Letter, dated April 27, 2020 
O Jackson County Roads Letter, dated April 27, 2020 
P ODFW E-Mail, dated April 23, 2019 
Q Rogue Valley Airport E-Mail, dated April 28, 2020 
R City Surveyor Memo, dated April 22, 2020 
S Applicant’s Letter of Map Amendment to FEMA, received April 1, 2020 
T Account Info, received April 1, 2020 
U Deeds, received April 1, 2020 
V Irrigation Calculations, received April 1, 2020 
W Photos, received April 1, 2020 
X Floodplain Memo & Firmette, received Mai 27, 2020 

Vicinity map 

SITE PLAN AND ARHITECTURAL COMMISSION AGENDA: JUNE 5, 2020 
  
 

17



 
EXHIBIT A 

 
Crater Lake Rentals 

AC-20-097 
Conditions of Approval 

May 27, 2020 
 

CODE REQUIRED CONDITIONS 

Prior to the issuance of a building permit for vertical construction, the applicant shall: 

1. Submit an updated site plan showing the location for bike parking spaces per MLDC 
10.747 through 10.751 

2. Submit an updated site plan showing all required pedestrian connections per MLDC 
10.772 through 10.776 

3. Comply with all conditions stipulated by the Public Works Department (Exhibit J). 

4. Comply with all conditions stipulated by the Medford Water Commission (Exhibit M). 

5. Comply with all requirements of the Medford Fire Department (Exhibit K). 
6. Comply with all conditions stipulated by the Rogue Valley Sewer Services (Exhibit N) 

 

18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



City of Medford 200 S. Ivy Street, Medford, OR 97501 (541) 774-2100 cityofmedford.org 

P:\Staff Reports\AC\2020\AC-20-097 5274 Crater Lake Ave (TL 400) Commercial Bldg (Crater Lake Rentals, LLC)\AC-20-097 Staff Report-LD.docx Page 1 of 9 

LD DATE: 5/6/2020 

File Number: AC-20-097 

PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT STAFF REPORT 

5247 Crater Lake Avenue (TL 400) 
9,000 SF Commercial Building 

Project: Consideration of a 9,000 square foot commercial structure on 6.40 acres. 

Location: Located at 5274 Crater Lake Avenue in the C-H (Heavy Commercial) zoning district 

(361W32C400). 

Applicant: Applicant, Crater Lake Rentals, LLC; Agent, Richard Stevens & Associates, Inc.; 

Planner, Steffen Roennfeldt.  
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

NOTE: The items listed here shall be completed and accepted prior to the respective issuances of 

permits and certificates: 

Prior to issue of the first building permit, the following items shall be completed and 

accepted: 

 Submittal and approval of plans for site grading and drainage, and detention, if

applicable.

 Completion of all public improvements, if required.  The Applicant may provide

security for 120% of the improvements prior to issuance of building permits.

Construction plans for the improvements shall be approved by the Public Works

Engineering Division prior to acceptance of security.

 Items A – D, unless noted otherwise.

Prior to issue of Certificate-of-Occupancy for completed structures, the following items 

shall be completed and accepted: 

 Paving of all on-site parking and vehicle maneuvering areas

 Verification by the design Engineer that the stormwater quality and detention system

was constructed per the approved plan, if applicable.

 Completion of all public improvements, if applicable.

A. STREETS

1. Dedications

Crater Lake Avenue is considered a Legacy Street per Medford Land Development Code 

(MLDC) 10.427(D).  Proposed conditions of approval for land use actions which contain 

legacy streets shall be subject to review and recommendation by the City Engineer. The 

38



City of Medford 200 S. Ivy Street, Medford, OR 97501 (541) 774-2100 cityofmedford.org 

P:\Staff Reports\AC\2020\AC-20-097 5274 Crater Lake Ave (TL 400) Commercial Bldg (Crater Lake Rentals, LLC)\AC-20-097 Staff Report-LD.docx Page 2 of 9 

applicant shall be required to have a conference with the City Engineer prior to submitting 

land use applications containing legacy streets; the City Engineer shall produce a 

memorandum summarizing the meeting and legacy street standards that would apply to 

the land use application and this memorandum shall be submitted as an exhibit with the 

land use application. If a deviation from the City Engineer’s recommendation is requested 

by the applicant, the applicant shall provide written findings (see criteria under MLDC 

10.427(D)(1)(a-e). 

Crater Lake Avenue is classified as a Commercial street within the MLDC 10.430.  The 

Developer shall dedicate for public right-of-way, sufficient width of land along the frontage 

to accommodate a future 10-foot planter strip with 5-foot sidewalk, unless otherwise 

recommended through the Legacy Street Memorandum.  The Developer’s surveyor shall 

verify the amount of additional right-of-way required. 

NOTE: Justice Road is a planned Minor Collector street running along the north side of this 

property, as shown on the City’s functional classification map.  The applicant may dedicate 

the land and receive SDC Credits (see below), or the City can purchase it in the future when 

the road is built. 

The Developer will receive SSDC (Street System Development Charge) credits for the public 

right-of-way dedication on Justice Road, per the methodology established by the MLDC 

3.815.  Should the Developer elect to have the value of the land be determined by an 

appraisal, a letter to that effect must be submitted to the City Engineer within sixty (60) 

calendar days of the date of the Final Order of the Planning Commission. The City will then 

select an appraiser, and a cash deposit will be required as stated in Section 3.815. 

In accordance with MLDC 10.471, the property owner shall dedicate a 10-foot wide public 

utility easement (PUE) adjacent to the right-of-way line along this Developments frontage to 

Crater Lake Avenue. 

The right-of-way and easement dedication shall be submitted directly to the Engineering 

Division of the Public Works Department.  The submittal shall include: the right-of-way and 

easement dedication, including an exhibit map; a copy of a current Lot Book Report, 

Preliminary Title Report, or Title Policy; a mathematical closure report (if applicable), and 

the Planning Department File Number; for review and City Engineer acceptance signature 

prior to recordation by the applicant. Releases of interest shall be obtained by holders of 

trust deeds or mortgages on the right-of-way and PUE area. 

2. Public Improvements

a. Public Streets

Crater Lake Avenue – All street section improvements have been completed including 

pavement, curb and gutter, sidewalks and street lights. No additional street improvements 

39



City of Medford 200 S. Ivy Street, Medford, OR 97501 (541) 774-2100 cityofmedford.org 

P:\Staff Reports\AC\2020\AC-20-097 5274 Crater Lake Ave (TL 400) Commercial Bldg (Crater Lake Rentals, LLC)\AC-20-097 Staff Report-LD.docx Page 3 of 9 

are required, aside from the street lights noted below. 

NOTE: All projects subject to Site Plan and Architectural Review shall be required per MLDC 

10.501 (6), as a condition of approval, to repair all frontage sidewalks as determined by the 

Engineering Division. When attached as a condition of approval of a Site Plan and 

Architectural.  Review application the sidewalk maintenance procedures set forth in 

Chapter 3, Section 3.025, Notice on Hearing of City Repair of Sidewalks, through 3.035, 

Notice of Sidewalk Repair, are hereby superseded. 

b. Street Lights and Signing

The Developer shall provide and install in compliance with Section 10.495 of the Medford 

Municipal Code (MMC).  Based on the preliminary plan submitted, the following number of 

street lights and signage will be required: 

Street Lighting – Developer Provided & Installed: 

A. 3 – Type R-150 (LED)

B. 1 – Base Mounted Cabinet (BMC)

NOTE – There could be an issue with PPL overhead lines.  Clearance would need to be verified with PPL. 

 Signs and Devices – City Installed, paid by the Developer: 

A. None.

Numbers are subject to change if changes are made to the plans.  All street lights shall be 

installed per City standards and be shown on a set of public improvement plans.  Public 

Works will provide preliminary street light locations upon request.  All street lights shall be 

operating and turned on at the time of the final “walk through” inspection by the Public 

Works Department. 

The Developer shall be responsible for the preservation and re-installation of all signs 

removed during demolition and site preparation work.  The Developer’s contractor shall 

coordinate with the City of Medford Public Works, Maintenance and Operations Division to 

remove any existing signs and place new signs provided by the Developer. 

c. Pavement Moratoriums

There is no pavement cutting moratorium currently in effect along this developments 

frontage to Crater Lake Avenue.  

3. Section 10.668 Analysis

To support a condition of development that an Applicant dedicate land for public use or 

provide a public improvement, the Medford Code requires a nexus and rough 

proportionality analysis which is essentially a codification of the constitutional provisions in 

Nollan and Dolan cases.  

40



City of Medford 200 S. Ivy Street, Medford, OR 97501 (541) 774-2100 cityofmedford.org 

P:\Staff Reports\AC\2020\AC-20-097 5274 Crater Lake Ave (TL 400) Commercial Bldg (Crater Lake Rentals, LLC)\AC-20-097 Staff Report-LD.docx Page 4 of 9 

10.668 Limitation of Exactions 

Notwithstanding any other provisions of this Chapter 10, an Applicant for a development 

permit shall not be required, as a condition of granting the application, to dedicate land for 

public use or provide public improvements unless: 

(1) the record shows that there is an essential nexus between the exaction and a legitimate 

government purpose and that there is a rough proportionality between the burden of the 

exaction on the Developer and the burden of the development on public facilities and 

services so that the exaction will not result in a taking of private property for public use, or 

(2) a mechanism exists and funds are available to fairly compensate the Applicant for the 

excess burden of the exaction to the extent that it would be a taking. 

1. Nexus to a legitimate government purpose

The purposes for these dedications and improvements are found throughout the

Medford Code, the Medford Transportation System Plan, and the Statewide Planning

Rule, and supported by sound public policy.  Those purposes and policies include, but

are not limited to: development of a balanced transportation system addressing all

modes of travel, including motor vehicles, transit, bicycles, emergency services and

pedestrians.  Further, these rights-of-way are used to provide essential services such as

sanitary sewer, domestic water and storm drains to serve the developed parcels.  It can

be found that the listed right-of-way dedications and improvements have a nexus to

these purposes and policies.

2. Rough proportionality between the dedications and improvements, and the

impacts of development.

No mathematical formula is required to support the rough proportionality analysis.

Furthermore, benefits to the development resulting from the dedication and

improvements when determining “rough proportionality” have been considered,

including but not limited to: increased property values, intensification of use, as well as

connections to municipal services and the transportation network.

As set forth below, the dedications and improvements recommended herein can be found 

to be roughly proportional to the impacts reasonably anticipated to be imposed by this 

development. 

Crater Lake Avenue: 

The additional right-of-way will provide the needed width for a future planter strip and 

sidewalk on Crater Lake Avenue.  Crater Lake Avenue is a 45 mile per hour facility. The 8-foot 

planter strip moves pedestrians a safe distance from the edge of the roadway. Crater Lake 

Avenue will be the primary routes for pedestrians traveling to and from this development. 

Local street right-of-way dedication identified by the Public Works Department is required 

41



City of Medford 200 S. Ivy Street, Medford, OR 97501 (541) 774-2100 cityofmedford.org 

P:\Staff Reports\AC\2020\AC-20-097 5274 Crater Lake Ave (TL 400) Commercial Bldg (Crater Lake Rentals, LLC)\AC-20-097 Staff Report-LD.docx Page 5 of 9 

by the City and is the minimum required to protect the public interest and is necessary for 

additional or densification of development in the City without detracting from the common 

good enjoyed by existing properties.  

Dedication of the Public Utility Easement (PUE) will benefit development by providing public 

utility services, which are out of the roadway and more readily available to each lot or 

building  being served.  The additional traffic of all modes of travel generated by this 

proposed development supports the dedication and improvements for all modes of travel 

and utilities.  As indicated above, the area required to be dedicated for this development is 

necessary and roughly proportional to that required in similar developments to provide a 

transportation system that meets the needs for urban level services. 

B. SANITARY SEWERS

This site lies within the Rogue Valley Sewer Service (RVSS) area.  The Developer shall 

contact RVSS for conditions of connection to the sanitary sewer collection system.  The 

Developer shall provide one separate individual service lateral to each tax lot or ensure 

that each tax lot is served by an individual service lateral. 

C. STORM DRAINAGE

1. Drainage Plan

A comprehensive drainage plan showing the entire project site with sufficient spot 

elevations to determine direction of runoff to the proposed drainage system, and also 

showing elevations on the proposed drainage system, shall be submitted with the first 

building permit application for approval. 

The Developer shall provide copies of either a Joint Use Maintenance Agreement or a 

private stormdrain easement for any stormwater draining onto or from adjacent private 

property. 

A Site/Utility Plan shall be submitted with the building permit application to show the 

location of existing or proposed stormdrain lateral/s for the site. 

All private storm drain lines shall be located outside of the public right-of-way and/or any 

public utility easements (PUE). 

2. Storm Drainage Conditions

Developer shall make improvements to Swanson Creek to convey the 25-year storm with 

one foot of freeboard, or provide calculations showing this condition now exists. 

Developer shall provide an easement for Swanson Creek measured from the centerline of 

the Creek 25-feet either side for a total width of 50-feet. 

42



City of Medford 200 S. Ivy Street, Medford, OR 97501 (541) 774-2100 cityofmedford.org 

P:\Staff Reports\AC\2020\AC-20-097 5274 Crater Lake Ave (TL 400) Commercial Bldg (Crater Lake Rentals, LLC)\AC-20-097 Staff Report-LD.docx Page 6 of 9 

Developer shall provide riparian plantings meeting ODFW standards within the Creek 

easement. 

3. Grading

A comprehensive grading plan showing the relationship between adjacent property and 

the proposed development will be submitted with the improvement plans for approval. 

Grading on this development shall not block drainage from an adjacent property or 

concentrate drainage onto an adjacent property without an easement. The Developer shall 

be responsible that the final grading of the development shall be in compliance with the 

approved grading plan. 

4. Detention and Water Quality

Stormwater quality and detention facilities shall be required in accordance with MLDC 

Section 10.481 and 10.729. 

5. Verification

Upon completion of the project, and prior to certificate of occupancy of the building, the 

Developer’s design Engineer shall verify that the construction of the stormwater quality and 

detention system was constructed per plan.  Verification shall be in writing and submitted 

to the Engineering Division of Public Works.  Reference Rogue Valley Stormwater Quality 

Design Manual, Appendix I, Technical Requirements. 

6. Erosion Prevention and Sediment Control

All development that disturbs 5,000 square feet or greater shall require an Erosion 

Prevention and Sediment Control Plan.  Developments that disturb one acre and greater 

shall require a 1200C permit from the Department of Environmental Quality (DEQ).  Erosion 

Prevention and Sediment Control Plans shall be submitted to the Building Department with 

the project plans for development.  All disturbed areas shall be covered with vegetation or 

properly stabilized prior to certificate of occupancy.  

D. GENERAL CONDITIONS

1. Design Requirements and Construction Drawings

All public improvements shall be constructed in accordance with the “Engineering Design 

Standards for Public Improvements”, adopted by the Medford City Council. Copies of this 

document are available in the Public Works Engineering office. 

43



City of Medford 200 S. Ivy Street, Medford, OR 97501 (541) 774-2100 cityofmedford.org 

P:\Staff Reports\AC\2020\AC-20-097 5274 Crater Lake Ave (TL 400) Commercial Bldg (Crater Lake Rentals, LLC)\AC-20-097 Staff Report-LD.docx Page 7 of 9 

2. Construction Plans

Construction drawings for any public improvements for this project shall be prepared by a 

professional engineer currently licensed in the State of Oregon, and submitted to the 

Engineering Division of Medford Public Works Department for approval. Construction 

drawings for public improvements shall be submitted only for the improvements to be 

constructed with each phase.  Approval shall be obtained prior to beginning construction. 

Only a complete set of construction drawings (3 copies) shall be accepted for review, 

including plans and profiles for all streets, sanitary sewers, storm drains, and street lights 

as required by the governing commission’s Final Order, together with all pertinent details 

and calculations.  A checklist for public improvement plan submittal can be found on the 

City of Medford, Public Works web site 

(http://www.ci.medford.or.us/Page.asp?NavID=3103).  The Developer shall pay a deposit 

for plan review and construction inspection prior to final plan approval.  Public Works will 

keep track of all costs associated with the project and, upon our acceptance of the 

completed project, will reconcile the accounting and either reimburse the Developer any 

excess deposit or bill the Developer for any additional amount not covered by the deposit. 

The Developer shall pay Public Works within 60 days of the billing date or will be 

automatically turned over for collections. 

In order to properly maintain an updated infrastructure data base, the Surveyor of Record 

shall submit an as-built survey prior to the Final Inspection and, the Engineer of Record 

shall submit mylar “as-constructed” drawings to the Engineering Division within sixty (60) 

calendar days of the Final Inspection (walk through).  Also, the engineer shall coordinate 

with the utility companies, and show all final utility locations on the "as built" drawings. 

3. Construction and Inspection

The Developer or Developer’s contractor shall obtain appropriate right-of-way permits 

from the Department of Public Works prior to commencing any work within the public 

right-of-way that is not included within the scope of work described within approved public 

improvement plans.   

Contractors proposing to do work on public streets (including street lights), sewers, or 

storm drains shall ‘prequalify’ with the Engineering Division prior to starting work.  For City 

of Medford facilities, the Public Works Maintenance Division requires that public sanitary 

sewer and storm drain mains be inspected by video camera prior to acceptance of these 

systems by the City. 

4. Site Improvements

All on-site parking and vehicle maneuvering areas related to this development shall be 

paved in accordance with MLDC, Section 10.746, prior to issuance of certificate of 

occupancy for any structures on the site.  Curbs shall be constructed around the perimeter 

44

http://www.ci.medford.or.us/Page.asp?NavID=3103


City of Medford 200 S. Ivy Street, Medford, OR 97501 (541) 774-2100 cityofmedford.org 

P:\Staff Reports\AC\2020\AC-20-097 5274 Crater Lake Ave (TL 400) Commercial Bldg (Crater Lake Rentals, LLC)\AC-20-097 Staff Report-LD.docx Page 8 of 9 

of all parking and maneuvering areas that are adjacent to landscaping or unpaved areas 

related to this site.  Curbs may be deleted or curb cuts provided wherever pavement drains 

to a water quality facility. 

5. System Development Charges (SDC)

Buildings in this development are subject to system development charges (SDCs).  All SDC 

fees shall be paid at the time individual building permits are issued 

Prepared by: Jodi K Cope 

Reviewed by: Doug Burroughs

45



City of Medford 200 S. Ivy Street, Medford, OR 97501 (541) 774-2100 cityofmedford.org 

P:\Staff Reports\AC\2020\AC-20-097 5274 Crater Lake Ave (TL 400) Commercial Bldg (Crater Lake Rentals, LLC)\AC-20-097 Staff Report-LD.docx Page 9 of 9 

SUMMARY CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL
5247 Crater Lake Avenue (TL 400) 
9,000 SF Commercial Building  AC-20-097

A. Streets

1. Street Dedications to the Public:

 Crater Lake Avenue – Dedicate additional right-of-way unless otherwise recommended through

the Legacy Street Memorandum.

o NOTE: Justice Road is a planned Minor Collector street running along the north side of this

property, as shown on the City’s functional classification map.  The applicant may dedicate the

land and receive SDC Credits, or the City can purchase it in the future when the road is built.

Please work that into the staff report.

 Dedicate 10-foot Public Utility Easement (PUE) along the frontage to Crater Lake Avenue.

2. Improvements:

Public Streets

 Crater Lake Avenue – No improvements are required at this time, aside from streetlights.

Lighting and Signing 

 Developer supplies and installs all street lights at own expense.

 City installs traffic signs and devices at Developer’s expense.

Other 

 No pavement moratorium currently in effect along this frontage to Crater Lake Avenue.

B. Sanitary Sewer:

 The site is situated within the RVSS area.

C. Storm Drainage:

 Provide a comprehensive grading and drainage plan.

 Comply with Storm Drainage Conditions.

 25 year conveyance

 50-foot easement

 Riparian plantings

 Provide water quality and detention facilities, calculations and O&M Manual.

 Provide Engineers certification of stormwater facility construction.

 = City Code Requirement

o = Discretionary recommendations/comments

The above summary is for convenience only and does not supersede or negate the full report in any way.  If there is any discrepancy 

between the above list and the full report, the full report shall govern.  Refer to the full report for details on each item as well as 

miscellaneous requirements for the project, including requirements for public improvement plans (Construction Plans), design 

requirements, phasing, draft and final plat processes, permits, system development charges, pavement moratoriums and 

construction inspection. 

46



Reviewed By: Kleinberg, Greg Review Date: 4/30/2020
Meeting Date: 5/6/2020

LD File #: AC20097

Planner: Steffen Roennfeldt

Applicant: Crater Lake Rentals, LLC

Site Name: n/a

Project Location: 5274 Crater Lake Avenue

ProjectDescription: Consideration of a 9,000 square foot commercial structure on 6.40 acres located at 5274 Crater Lake
Avenue in the C-H (Heavy Commercial) zoning district (361W32C400);

Conditions
Reference Comments Description

505.1 Address
numbers shall
be visible at
Crater Lake
Avenue. They
can be posted
on a business
sign.

Address identification. New and existing buildings shall be provided with approved address
identification. The address identification shall be legible and placed in a position that is visible
from the street or road fronting the property. Address identification characters shall
contrast with their background. Address numbers shall be Arabic numbers or alphabetical
letters. Numbers shall not be spelled out. Each character shall be not less than 4 inches
(102 mm) high with a minimum stroke width of / inch (12.7 mm). Where required by the fire
code official , address identification shall be provided in additional approved locations to
facilitate emergency response. Where access is by means of a private road and the building
cannot be viewed from the public way , a monument, pole or other sign or means shall be
used to identify the structure. Address identification shall be maintained.

OFC
507.5.1

One internal
fire hydrant will
be required. If
the building is
protected with
a fire sprinkler
system, the fire
department
connection
shall be within
75 feet of a
fire hydrant.

Where a portion of the facility or building hereafter constructed or moved into or within the
jurisdiction is more than 400 feet (122 m) from a hydrant on a fire apparatus access road, as
measured by an approved route around the exterior of the facility or building, on-site fire
hydrants and mains shall be provided where required by the fire code official.

Exceptions:
1. For Group R-3 and Group U occupancies, the distance requirement shall be 600 feet (183
m).
2. For buildings equipped throughout with an approved automatic sprinkler system installed
in accordance with Section 903.3.1.1 or 903.3.1.2, the distance requirement shall be 600
feet (183 m).

The approved water supply for fire protection (hydrants) is required to be installed prior to
construction when combustible material arrives at the site.

Plans and specifications for fire hydrant system shall be submitted to Medford Fire
Department for review and approval prior to construction. Submittal shall include a copy of
this review (OFC 501.3).

Medford Fire-Rescue Land Development Report

Review/Project Information

Specific Development Requirements for Access & Water Supply

Page 1 of 3          47



OFC
503.2.1

Road/fire lane
design
requirements
for fire
apparatus.

Fire apparatus access roads and fire lanes shall have an unobstructed width of not less than
20 feet and unobstructed vertical clearance of not less than 13 feet 6 inches. The required
width of a fire apparatus access road or fire lane shall not be obstructed in any manner,
including parking of vehicles. Minimum required widths and clearances established under
section 503.2.1, shall be maintained at all times. The fire apparatus access road or fire lane
shall be constructed as asphalt, concrete or other approved all-weather driving surface
capable of supporting the imposed load of fire apparatus weighing up to 75,000 pounds.
(See also OFC 503.4; D102.1)

The turning radius on fire department access roads and fire lanes shall meet the following
Medford Fire Department requirements:

Minimum Inside Turning Radius: 25 feet

Minimum Outside Turning Radius: 35 feet

(OFC 503.2.4)

OFC
503.4;
D103.6;
D103.6.1;
D103.6.2

Parking shall be
posted/marked
as prohibited
along the fire
lanes.

Fire apparatus access roads 20-26' wide shall be posted on both sides as a fire lane. Fire
apparatus access roads more than 26' to 32' wide shall be posted on one side as a fire lane
(OFC D103.6.1).

Where parking is prohibited for fire department vehicle access purposes, NO PARKING-FIRE
LANE signs shall be spaced at minimum 50' intervals along the fire lane (minimum 75'
intervals in 1 & 2 family residential areas) and at fire department designated turn-around's.
The signs shall have red letters on a white background stating "NO PARKING-FIRE LANE"
(See handout). 

For privately owned properties, posting/marking of fire lanes may be accomplished by any
of the following alternatives to the above requirement (consult with the Fire Department
for the best option): 

Alternative #1:
Curbs shall be painted red along the entire distance of the fire department access. Minimum
4" white letters stating "NO PARKING-FIRE LANE" shall be stenciled on the curb at 25-foot
intervals.

Alternative #2:
Asphalt shall be striped yellow or red along the entire distance of the fire department
access. The stripes shall be at least 6" wide, be a minimum 24" apart, be placed at a minimum
30-60 degree angle to the perimeter stripes, and run parallel to each other. Letters stating
"NO PARKING-FIRE LANE" shall be stenciled on the asphalt at 25-foot intervals.

Fire apparatus access roads shall not be obstructed in any manner, including the parking of
vehicles. The minimum widths (20' wide) and clearances (13' 6" vertical) shall be maintained
at all times (OFC 503.4; ORS 98.810-12).

This restriction shall be recorded on the property deed as a requirement for future
construction. 

A brochure is available on our website at:

http://www.ci.medford.or.us/Files/Fire%20Lane%20Brochure.pdf

OFC 3201 High-piled
storage
requirements.

A maximum of 500 sq. ft. of high-piled combustible storage area is allowed without
additional requirements. High-piled storage constitutes storage heights over 12' for normal
combustibles or storage heights over 6' for certain high-hazard commodities. If the
threshold is exceeded, the additional requirements of Oregon Fire Code Chapter 32 must
be met (Additional fire protection and building design features for high piled storage).

Development shall comply with access and water supply requirements in accordance with the Oregon Fire Code in affect at
the time of development submittal. Fire apparatus access roads are required to be installed prior to the time of construction.
The approved water supply for fire protection (fire hydrants) is required to be installed prior to construction when
combustible material arrives at the site.

Construction General Information/Requirements

Page 2 of 3          48



Specific fire protection systems may be required in accordance with the Oregon Fire Code.
This plan review shall not prevent the correction of errors or violations that are found to exist during construction. This plan
review is based on information provided only.

Design and installation shall meet the Oregon requirements of the International Fire, Building, Mechanicial Codes and
applicable NFPA Standards.

Medford Fire-Rescue, 200 S Ivy St. Rm 180, Medford OR 97501 541-774-2300

www.medfordfirerescue.org

Page 3 of 3          49



MEMORANDUM 

To: Steffen Roennfeldt, Planning Department  

From: Chad Wiltrout, Building Department (541) 774-2363 

CC: Applicant, Crater Lake Rentals, LLC; Agent, Richard Stevens & Assoc., Inc. 

Date: May 6, 2020  

Subject: AC-20-097_Crater Lake Rentals 

Please Note:  

This is not a plan review. Unless noted specifically as Conditions of Approval, general 
comments are provided below based on the general information provided; these 
comments are based on the 2019 Oregon Structural Specialty Code (OSSC) unless 
noted otherwise. Plans need to be submitted and will be reviewed by a commercial 
plans examiner, and there may be additional comments.  

Fees are based on valuation.  Please contact Building Department front counter for 
estimated fees at (541) 774-2350 or building@cityofmedford.org. 

For questions related to the Conditions or Comments, please contact me, Chad 
Wiltrout, directly at (541) 774-2363 or chad.wiltrout@cityofmedford.org. 

General Comments: 

1. For list of applicable Building Codes, please visit the City of Medford website:
www.ci.medford.or.us  Click on “City Departments” at top of screen; click on
“Building”; click on “Design Criteria” on left side of screen and select the appropriate 
design criteria.

2. All plans are to be submitted electronically. Information on the website:
www.ci.medford.or.us      Click on “City Departments” at top of screen; click on
“Building”; click on “Electronic Plan Review (ePlans)” for information.

3. A site excavation and grading permit will be required if more than 50 cubic yards
is disturbed.

50

mailto:building@cityofmedford.org
mailto:chad.wiltrout@cityofmedford.org
http://www.ci.medford.or.us/
http://www.ci.medford.or.us/


4. A separate demolition permit will be required for demolition of any structures not
shown on the plot plan.

Comments: 

5. Proposed construction in proximity to property lines shall comply with
table 602 and code section 705 of the Oregon Structural Specialty Code.

6. ADA parking spaces shall be required in accordance with code section
1106 of the Oregon Structural Specialty Code. (See attached ADA parking
figures). ADA accessibility for the site and the building shall be addressed in detail
to show compliance with Chapter 11 OSSC and 2009 ANSI A117.1

7. A code analysis providing occupant load, type of construction, type of
occupancy, sprinkler design, dwelling unit separation etc… will be required.

8. The building and building appurtenances shall be designed by an Oregon
licensed design professional in accordance with 107.1 and 107.3.4 OSSC.

9. Provide Fire Protection Systems per Chapter 9 of the OSSC and
the 2014 Oregon Fire Code. Per Fire Department.

10. Address smoke detection and carbon monoxide alarms per 907.2.9 and
908.7.2 OSSC

11. Oregon Building Cods Division provides 2 options for meeting energy
code requirements for new construction. There are several forms and
detailing requirements needed to show compliance depending on which
code path you choose. Please visit the Oregon BCD website for
details/requirements.

12. Special inspections may be required per chapter 17 of the 2014 Oregon
Structural Specialty Code.

13. This property is located in the 100 year Flood Plain. A Flood Plain
Development permit is required.

51



 BOARD OF WATER COMMISSIONERS 

 Staff Memo 

R:\Departments\Engineering\Land Development\ac20097.docx  Page 1 of 1 

TO: Planning Department, City of Medford

FROM: Rodney Grehn P.E., Water Commission Staff Engineer

SUBJECT: AC-20-097

PARCEL ID: 361W32C TL 4000

PROJECT: Consideration of a 9,000 square foot commercial structure on 6.40 acres located 
at 5274 Crater Lake Avenue in the C-H (Heavy Commercial) zoning district 
(361W32C400); Applicant, Crater Lake Rentals, LLC; Agent, Richard Stevens & 
Associates, Inc.; Planner, Steffen Roennfeldt.

DATE: May 6, 2020

I have reviewed the above plan authorization application as requested.  Conditions for approval and 
comments are as follows: 

CONDITIONS 

1. The water facility planning/design/construction process will be done in accordance with the
Medford Water Commission (MWC) “Regulations Governing Water Service” and “Standards
For Water Facilities/Fire Protection Systems/Backflow Prevention Devices.”

2. All parcels/lots of proposed property divisions will be required to have metered water service
prior to recordation of final map, unless otherwise arranged with MWC.

3. Based on provided Site Plan, it appears there is an existing well on-site. If a “well” does exist
on this parcel; it will be required to be abandoned per State of Oregon Water Resources
Department Regulations, per Oregon Water Resources Department Chapter 690 Division 220.

4. If the “Well” is planned to remain in place; then the Installation of a Reduced Pressure
Backflow Device is required per MWC Standards. This Backflow Device is to be installed
immediately behind the existing water meter. This is required to protect the “Public” Water
System from potential contamination.

5. The Reduced Pressure Backflow Device is required to be protected from “freezing”
temperatures. Installation of an “accessible” insulated box, cabinet, fake rock (Hot Box
Enclosure) is required to prevent damage to the above ground plumbing fixtures.

COMMENTS

1. Off-site water line installation is not required.

2. On-site water facility construction May be required, depending on Fire Department Conditions.

3. MWC-metered water service does exist to this property. A 1.5-inch water meter serves the
existing buildings located at 5274, 5276, 5278, 5280 Crater Lake Avenue. Access to MWC
water lines is available. There is a 12-inch water line on the east side of Crater Lake Avenue.

52



G!.

G!.

G!.

!#A

&É

! (

! (

! (

!4

1300

1300

1300

1300

1300

1300

Swanson
Creek

1'' C

1
2
'' 
D
I 
2
0
0
7

1
2
'' 
D
I 
2
0
0
1

H1485
Elev: 1295 ft

H1486
Elev: 1294 ft

H4855
Elev: 1295 ft

12'' BV2998

6'' GV3975

6'' GV3976

6'' GV11382

5296
1 1/2M

C
ra
te
r 
L
ak
e 
A
ve

E Justice
Rd

!R
"P
;̄C

This map is based on a digital database compiled by  Medford Water Commission from a
variety of sources. Medford Water Commission cannot accept responsibility for errors,
omissions, or positional accuracy. There are no warrantees, expressed or implied.

Legend

Water Mains:

Urban Growth Boundary

City Limits

Tax Lots

!RReservoir

"PPump Station

Control Station;̄C

Sample Station

Air Valve

³ Fire Service

Hydrant

Reducer#

Blow Off

Plugs-Caps

Abandoned Main

Active Main

S

!#A

T"B

G

G!.

Reservoir Drain Pipe

Pressure Zone Line

Boundaries:

MWC Facilities:

Butterfly Valve

Gate Valve

Tapping Valve

&É

! (

!R

Water Valves:

Water Meters:
Active Meter

On Well

Unknown

Vacant

!4

!4

!4

!4

Path: R:\Departments\GIS\MXDs\Rods MXDs\Rods ArcGIS Pro - Multi-Layout - 3-13-20.aprx

Date: 5/6/2020

0 50 10025
Feet

Scale: 1"= 200'

City of Medford
Planning Application

AC-20-097
(Crater Lake Rentals)

May 6, 2020

53



K:\DATA\AGENCIES\MEDFORD\PLANNG\ARCH COMM\2020\AC-20-097_CRATER LAKE RENTALS.DOC 

ROGUE VALLEY SEWER SERVICES 
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ 

 
 

  Location: 138 West Vilas Road, Central Point, OR - Mailing Address: P.O. Box 3130, Central Point, OR 97502-0005 
Tel. (541) 664-6300, Fax (541) 664-7171    www.RVSS.us 

April 27, 2020 

City of Medford Planning Department 
200 S. Ivy Street 
Medford, Oregon   97501 

Re: AC-20-097, Crater Lake Rentals (361W32C – 400) 

ATTN: Steffen, 

The subject property is within the RVSS service area. There is an existing 8 inch sewer 
main located on the property along the east right-of-way line of Crater Lake Avenue. 
Two services are extended to the existing buildings on the property from the 8 inch 
main. Sewer service for the proposed building can be had by tapping the existing 8 inch 
main. The tap permit is issued by RVSS and the sewer connection permit will be issued 
by the City of Medford. SDC fees will be owed to RVSS prior to the issuance of any 
permit. 

Rogue Valley Sewer Services requests that the development be subject to the following 
conditions: 

1. All sewer design and construction must be performed in accordance with RVSS
standards.

2. The applicant must obtain a sewer tap permit from RVSS prior to construction.
3. The applicant must submit architectural plans to RVSS for the calculation of

related sewer system development charges and pay said charges to Rogue
Valley Sewer Service prior to construction.

Please feel free contact me with any questions. 

Sincerely, 

Nicholas R. Bakke, P.E. 
District Engineer 

54



55



56



1

Steffen K. Roennfeldt

From: Amber Judd <JuddAJ@jacksoncounty.org>
Sent: Tuesday, April 28, 2020 4:31 PM
To: Steffen K. Roennfeldt
Subject: File No. AC-20-097 Project Name: Crater Lake Rentals

<EXTERNAL EMAIL **Click Responsibly!**> 

Steffen, 

The Airport requests an Avigation, Noise and Hazard Easement be a requirement of this project.  In addition, due to the 
proximity to the Airport, the applicant needs to contact the FAA regarding filing a 7460‐1 Notice of Proposed 
Construction or Alteration.  The FAA contact is: Paul Holmquist, phone (206) 231‐2990. 

I have inserted some information below from the FAA’s website: 

The requirements for filing with the Federal Aviation Administration for proposed structures vary based on a number of factors: 
height, proximity to an airport, location, and frequencies emitted from the structure, etc. For more details, please reference CFR 
Title 14 Part 77.9. 

You must file with the FAA at least 45 days prior to construction if: 

 Your structure will exceed 200 ft above ground level

 Your structure will be in proximity to an airport and will exceed the slope ratio

 Your structure involves construction of a traverseway (i.e. highway, railroad, waterway, etc…) and once adjusted upward
with the appropriate vertical distance would exceed a standard of 77.9(a) or (b)

 Your structure will emit frequencies, and does not meet the conditions of the FAA Co‐location Policy

 Your structure will be in an instrument approach area and might exceed part 77 Subpart C

 Your proposed structure will be in proximity to a navigation facility and may impact the assurance of navigation signal
reception

 Your structure will be on an airport or heliport

 Filing has been requested by the FAA

If you require additional information regarding the filing requirements for your structure, please identify and contact the 
appropriate FAA representative using the Air Traffic Areas of Responsibility map for Off Airport construction, or contact the FAA 
Airport Region/District Office for On Airport construction. 

Results 

You exceed the following Notice Criteria: 

Your proposed structure is in proximity to a navigation facility and may impact the assurance of navigation signal reception. The FAA, 
in accordance with 77.9, requests that you file. 

The FAA requests that you file. 

Thank you, 

Amber Judd 

57



2

Director of Finance and Administration 
Rogue Valley International-Medford Airport (MFR) 

1000 Terminal Loop Parkway, Suite 201 
Medford, Oregon 97504 

541-776-7222 

58



59

JMProud
Text Box
Steffen, Attached description matches subject are shown on vicinity map.Thanks, Jon 4-27-20



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



City of Medford 411 W. 8th Street, Medford, OR 97501 (541) 774-2380 cityofmedford.org 

MEMORANDUM 

To: Steffen Roennfeldt, Planner III 

From: Liz Conner, CFM, Planner II 

Date: May 27, 2020 

Subject:  AC-20-097 5274 Crater Lake Avenue 

Project Description 

Consideration of a 9,000 square foot commercial structure on 6.40 acres located at 5274 

Crater Lake Avenue in the C-H (Heavy Commercial) zoning district (361W32C400). 

SITE CHARACTERISTICS 

 C-H Heavy Commercial zoning district

 Swanson Creek

 Special Flood Hazard Area Zone A

 No Base Flood Elevations or Floodway

 FIRM panel 41029C1788F effective May 3, 2011

FLOODPLAIN REGULATIONS 

The property is currently within a mapped A zone without Base Flood Elevations. Per the 

National Flood Insurance Program Regulations, any development and vertical structures and 

utilities shall comply with 44 CFR 60.3(b).  

The Medford Floodplain regulations are found in Chapter 13 of the Municipal Code.  The 

sections pertaining to areas of special flood hazard with Base Flood Elevations (BFE) need to 

be reviewed and adhered to specifically, along with other relevant sections.     

A Floodplain Development Permit is required prior to development in the Special Flood 

Hazard Areas.  Development is broadly defined and includes, but is not limited to, grading, 

filling, paving, and construction of buildings.   

103



 

Project: AC-20-097 

May 27, 2020 

 

 

Page 2 of 2 

 

Per Chapter 13, encroachments into the SFHA shall be prohibited unless it is demonstrated 

that the cumulative effect of the proposed development, when combined with all other 

existing and anticipated development, will not increase the water-surface elevation of the 

base flood more than 1 foot at any point within the community.    

Future tentative plans shall identify the special flood hazard areas.  Structures shall be 

constructed a minimum of one-foot above the BFE.    

Existing and proposed grades shall be provided and the effect of this earth movement on 

the floodplain shall be described in a narrative.    

COMMENTS 

The application submittals show that a Letter of Map Amendment (LOMA) is being 

requested. If a LOMA is issued, a copy shall be provided prior to development. If a LOMA 

removes the subject area from the SFHA then some of the requirements may not apply.  

The following comments were provided at the time of Pre-Application PA-19-046.  

The flood study provided by Construction Engineering Consultants Inc. uses the prediction 

equation and peak discharge estimator calculator form Oregon Water Recourses 

Department to establish the basin limits and peak flow. Please include or provided 

evidence of additional peak discharge calculations in accordance with the FEMA’s Guidance 

for Flood Risk Analysis and Mapping.  

Please include the required materials for the Letter of Map Revision submittals prior to 

development approval.  

Please provide a detailed map showing the Special Flood Hazard Area (SFHA) from the May 

3, 2011 effective date FIRM panel in relation to the SFHA proposed with the flood study.  

FLOODPLAIN PERMIT 

Submit a floodplain development application and fee along with submittal requirements 

identified in Chapter 13.  An Elevation Certificate (EC) is required with the submittal of 

building permits for new commercial structures located in the special flood hazard area 

(one at the time of building permit submittal, one during construction, and one prior to 

certificate of occupancy).     

Submit copies of all necessary permits from other governmental agencies from which 

approval is required prior to start of construction. 

Construction shall be in compliance with applicable building and fire codes and floodplain 

regulations. 

104



USGS The National Map: Orthoimagery. Data refreshed April, 2019.

National Flood Hazard Layer FIRMette

0 500 1,000 1,500 2,000250
Feet

Ü

12
2°

51
'34

.39
"W

 42°23'50.97"N 

122°50'56.94"W

42°23'24.40"N 

SEE FIS REPORT FOR DETAILED LEGEND AND INDEX MAP FOR FIRM PANEL LAYOUT

SPECIAL FLOOD
HAZARD AREAS

Without Base Flood Elevation (BFE)
Zone A, V, A99

With BFE or Depth Zone AE, AO, AH, VE, AR
Regulatory Floodway

0.2% Annual Chance Flood Hazard, Areas
of 1% annual chance flood with average
depth less than one foot or with drainage
areas of less than one square mile  Zone X
Future Conditions 1% Annual
Chance Flood Hazard Zone X
Area with Reduced Flood Risk due to
Levee. See Notes. Zone X
Area with Flood Risk due to Levee Zone D

NO SCREEN Area of Minimal Flood Hazard Zone X

Area of Undetermined Flood Hazard Zone D

Channel, Culvert, or Storm Sewer
Levee, Dike, or Floodwall

Cross Sections with 1% Annual Chance
17.5 Water Surface Elevation

Coastal Transect

Coastal Transect Baseline
Profile Baseline
Hydrographic Feature

Base Flood Elevation Line (BFE)

Effective LOMRs

Limit of Study
Jurisdiction Boundary

Digital Data Available
No Digital Data Available
Unmapped

This map complies with FEMA's standards for the use of 
digital flood maps if it is not void as described below. 
The basemap shown complies with FEMA's basemap 
accuracy standards
The flood hazard information is derived directly from the
authoritative NFHL web services provided by FEMA. This map
was exported on 5/27/2020 at 12:13:57 PM  and does not
reflect changes or amendments subsequent to this date and
time. The NFHL and effective information may change or
become superseded by new data over time.
This map image is void if the one or more of the following map
elements do not appear: basemap imagery, flood zone labels,
legend, scale bar, map creation date, community identifiers,
FIRM panel number, and FIRM effective date. Map images for
unmapped and unmodernized areas cannot be used for
regulatory purposes. 

Legend

OTHER AREAS OF
FLOOD HAZARD

OTHER AREAS

GENERAL
STRUCTURES

OTHER
FEATURES

MAP PANELS

8

1:6,000

B 20.2

The pin displayed on the map is an approximate 
point selected by the user and does not represent 
an authoritative property location.

105



Crater Lake Rentals
5278 Crater Lake Avenue

4/17/2020

Project Name:

Map/Taxlot:

N
Me

dfo
rd

Ind
us

t ri
al

Rd

E Justice Rd

He
lo 

Dr

Dillon Way

E Vilas Rd

CraterLake Ave

E Vilas Rd

4

3

2

1

AC-20-097
Vicinity

Map

File Number:

Subject Area

0 1,000500 Feet

Legend
Subject Area

Tax Lots s361W32C TL 400

106



 

 

STAFF REPORT  
for a Type-III quasi-judicial decision: Site Plan & Architectural Review 

Project Joseph Office Park – Building III 

 Applicant: Spectrum Orthotics; Agent: Oregon Architecture, Inc. 

File no. AC-20-099 

To Site Plan and Architectural Commission for 06/05/2020 hearing 

From Dustin Severs, Planner III 

Reviewer Kelly Evans, Assistant Planning Director 

Date May 29, 2020  

BACKGROUND 

Proposal  

Consideration of plans for the construction of Joseph Office Park – Building III, a 8,400 

square foot building on a 1.15-acre parcel located on the north side of East Barnett 

Road, approximately 650 feet west of North Phoenix Road (3531 East Barnett Road), 

within the C-S/P (Service Commercial – Professional Office) zoning district (371W28DD 

TL 900). 

Vicinity Map 

    

107



Joseph Office Park – Building III Staff Report  

File no. AC-20-099 May 29, 2020 

Page 2 of 11 

 

Subject Site Characteristics 

GLUP SC (Service Commercial)  

Zoning C-S/P (Service Commercial & Professional Office) 

Overlay None   

Use Joseph Office Park  

Surrounding Site Characteristics 

North  Zone:   SFR-4 (Single-Family Residential, four dwelling units per gross acre) 

 Use(s): Single-family residences 

South  Zone: SFR-4  

 Use(s): Single-family residences 

East Zone: SFR-4 & C-S/P 

 Use(s): Vacant lots 

West Zone: C-S/P 

 Use(s): Single-family residences and commercial building 

Related Projects 

CP-92-002  Comprehensive Plan Amendment to SC   

AC-01-047  Master Plan for Joseph Office Park 

ZC-02-001  Zone Change to C-S/P 

AC-02-198  Phase 1 Office Building (expired) 

AC-05-197  Phase 1 Office Building (approved) 

AC-11-133 Phase 2 Office Building (expired) 

AC-15-097 Phase 2 Office Building (approved) 

PLA-18-103 Property Line Adjustment (approved) 

Applicable Criteria 

Medford Municipal Code §10. 200(E)(1) – Site Plan & Architectural Review Criteria 

The Site Plan and Architectural Commission shall approve a site plan and architectural 

review application if it can find that the proposed development conforms, or can be 

made to conform through the imposition of conditions, with the following criteria: 

(a) The proposed development is compatible with uses and developments that 

exist on adjacent land; and 

(b) The proposed development complies with the applicable provisions of all 

city ordinances or the Site Plan and Architectural Commission has approved 

(an) exception(s) as provided in MLDC § 10.186.  

108



Joseph Office Park – Building III Staff Report  

File no. AC-20-099 May 29, 2020 

Page 3 of 11 

 

Approval Authority 

This is a Type III land use decision. The Site Plan & Architectural Commission is the 

approving authority under MLDC 10.108(1). 

ISSUES AND ANALYSIS 

Background 

Site Layout 

The subject development is part of the greater Joseph Office Park—originally 

approved in 1995—consisting of six contiguous parcels totaling approximately 4.8 

acres, and located at the corner of North Phoenix Road and East Barnett Road.  The 

subject development—Building III of the Joseph Office Park—is proposed to be 

constructed at the northerly half of lot 900, which totals 1.15 acres and currently 

contains an office building, located at the southerly half of the lot, occupied by 

Northwest Dental Associates.   

 

Site History 

FILE # DATE DESCRIPTION 

CP-92-002 1992 Comprehensive Plan Amendment to SC   

AC-01-047 2001 Master Plan for Joseph Office Park 

ZC-02-001 2002 Zone Change to C-S/P 

AC-02-198 2002 Phase 1 Office Building (expired) 

109



Joseph Office Park – Building III Staff Report  

File no. AC-20-099 May 29, 2020 

Page 4 of 11 

 

FILE # DATE DESCRIPTION 

AC-05-197 2005 Phase 1 Office Building (approved) 

AC-11-133 2011 Phase 2 Office Building (expired) 

AC-15-097 2015 Phase 2 Office Building (approved) 

PLA-18-103 2018 Property Line Adjustment (approved) 

 

In 1992, the property owner requested an amendment to the General Land Use Plan 

(GLUP) map, changing the designation from UR (Urban Residential) to SC (Service 

Commercial) (CP-92-2).  The request was approved, and in response to concerns of 

adjacent property owners, the City Council adopted Ordinance No. 7161 that imposed 

a number of conditions on the approval of the GLUP map amendment (Exhibit P).  The 

conditions specified that the City Council must approve a master site plan for Joseph 

Office Park within three years, and that the master site plan was to include certain 

mitigating conditions relating to building height, setbacks, and bufferyards.  The 

ordinance also stated that any amendments to the approved master plan were to be 

consistent with the mitigating conditions and approved by the City Council.   

In 1995, the City Council approved the master site plan and adopted Resolution No. 

7816 (Exhibit P), requiring the applicant to receive approval of the plan, including 

elevations and landscaping, from the Site Plan and Architectural Commission (SPAC).  

The resolution also specified that the GLUP amendment would be effective upon the 

SPAC approval of the master plan and the recordation of a restrictive covenant that 

required development to comply with the master plan, the conditions imposed by 

SPAC, and the conditions of the ordinance and the resolution adopted by the City 

Council.   

The Site Plan and Architectural Commission approved the master site plan for Joseph 

Office Park in 2001, imposing additional conditions including the recordation of a 

restrictive covenant that prohibits gas stations and food or drink establishments with 

entertainment from the development.  The master plan approved by SPAC also 

included an additional access from North Phoenix Road, at the northeast corner of 

the development, and a drive-through development at the southeast corner of Joseph 

Office Park.   

A zone change from SFR-4 (Single Family Residential-4 units per acre) to C-S/P 

(Commercial-Service/Professional) was approved by the Planning Commission in 

2002, with a condition that limited the size of the development until the intersection 

of Cherry Lane and North Phoenix Road was realigned and signalized (ZC-02-001).  

The intersection has since been improved, thereby negating the restriction. 

110



Joseph Office Park – Building III Staff Report  

File no. AC-20-099 May 29, 2020 

Page 5 of 11 

 

In 2002, the Site Plan and Architectural Commission reviewed the plans for Phase 1; 

however, that application expired (AC-02-198).  In 2006, SPAC again approved plans 

for the construction of Phase 1, and that project resulted in the first building within 

Joseph Office Park.  The approval included some changes to the building locations, 

floor area, and parking areas that the Commission had previously reviewed and 

approved with the Phase 1 application in 2002.  

In 2015, SPAC approved plans for the construction of Phase 2 of the Joseph Office 

Park (AC-15-097), which consisted of a 5,940 square foot office building located at the 

southwest corner of the site (directly south of the proposed building).  The office 

building has since been constructed, and is currently occupied by Northwest Dental 

Associates.  At the time of the approval of Phase 2, a property line ran down the 

middle of where the existing office building is located, and a condition of approval 

was added requiring a property line adjustment be approved prior to the issuance of 

building permit. 

In 2018, the Planning Director approved a Property Line Adjustment, consolidating 

two parcels and placing the proposed office building on a single lot (PLA-18-103).  

Current Proposal 

Overall Master Plan (Exhibit B) 

 

 

Site Plan – Building III (Exhibit C) 

 

 

 

 

 

  

111



Joseph Office Park – Building III Staff Report  

File no. AC-20-099 May 29, 2020 

Page 6 of 11 

 

Site Plan – Building III (Exhibit C) 

 

The applicant is now proposing Building III of the Joseph Office Park, consisting of an 

8,400 square foot building to be located at the northwest corner of the site (directly 

north of Building II).  The applicant’s findings state the proposed tenant and building 

owner is Spectrum Orthotics, a supplier and fitter of artificial limbs.  The proposed 

single-story office building will consist of 6,000 square feet of space for Spectrum 

Orthotics, while the remaining 2,400 square foot shell will be reserved either for 

Spectrum’s expansion or a future sub-tenant.  

Development Standards 

Commercial Site Development Table (MLDC 10.721) 

C-S/P Zone Allowed/Required Proposed/Shown 

Height 
85 feet  

EXCEPT 35 feet if located within 150 feet 

of a residential zone 
25’ 7” 

Lot Coverage 40% 23% 

Setback (front) 10 feet  10 +  

Setback  

(rear and side yards) 

None 
EXCEPT 1/2 foot for each foot in building 

height over 20 feet 
 encroaching 

112



Joseph Office Park – Building III Staff Report  
File no. AC-20-099 May 29, 2020 

Page 7 of 11 
 

As shown in the Site Development Table above, it can be found that—with the 
exception of the side yard setback along the parcel’s easterly lot line—the proposed 
office building identified on the submitted site plan meets the bulk standards for the 
C-S/P zoning district as found in Article V of the Medford Land Development Code.  
The submitted plans show the proposed building overlapping the north/south 
property line dividing lots 900 and 4000.  A Property Line Adjustment or Partition will 
be required in order to meet the side yard setback.  

Parking 

Parking Table (MLDC 10.743-751) 

 Required Proposed/Shown 

Vehicle Spaces 38 min. / 45 max. 53 

Handicap Spaces 3 3 

Bicycle Spaces 5 6 

 

The submitted site plan shows a total of 53 parking stalls, including three handicap 
spaces, meeting the minimum, but exceeding the maximum permitted per MLDC 
10.743 – 10.751.  Pursuant to MLDC 10.743(3), the applicant is requesting relief to 
exceed the maximum number of spaces.  In their findings (Exhibit H), the applicant 
points out that the entire 8,400 square foot building is not being used for office space 
(the 2,400 square foot vacant portion of the building could potentially be occupied by 
a use in which the Code requires less parking).   

Staff is supportive of the request.  

 

Landscaping 

Parking Lot Landscaping (MLDC 10.746[3]) 

 Required Shown 

Area (square feet) 1,100 1,525 

Trees 7 7 

Shrubs 13 13+ 

 

The applicant’s submitted landscape plan (Exhibit E) shows extensive landscaping 
along the site’s northerly and westerly property lines, which abut the residential 
properties to the north and west.  While frontage landscaping requirements have 
already been met with the approval of Building II, the proposed development is 



Joseph Office Park – Building III Staff Report  

File no. AC-20-099 May 29, 2020 

Page 8 of 11 

 

required to provide interior landscaping in the form of parking area planters within 

the proposed parking area. The landscape plan shows interior landscaping, meeting 

the required number of trees, shrubs, and total landscaping within the site’s parking 

lot as per MLDC 10.746(3).  

Pedestrian Access (MLDC 10.772-776) 

The site plan shows pedestrian walkways connecting the proposed building to the 

abutting parcels within Joseph Office Park, consistent with the pedestrian connectivity 

standards found in MLDC 10.772-776.   

Concealments 

Trash Enclosure (MLDC 10.781) 

The applicant’s site plan (Exhibit B) shows a trash enclosure located to the northwest 

corner of the site, and provides an elevation plan of the proposed trash enclosure 

constructed with materials consistent with the requirements outlined in MLDC 

10.781.  

HVAC/Equipment (MLDC 10.782) 

All HVAC equipment roof-mounted equipment is required to be concealed using the 

architectural elements of the building (i.e., roof forms, parapets, wing walls, alcoves, 

etc.).  It is not clear from the applicant’s plans if the roof mounted equipment will be 

adequately concealed.   

Architecture 

 

The applicant’s submitted narrative (Exhibit I) describes the building’s proposed 

architecture and how it fits with and complements adjacent buildings, as the 

following: 

The new building takes its design cues from the adjacent structures.  It will 

have a brick wainscot in the same color as the two buildings in front, 

including brick columns as the building corners and midway down the 

building length.  It will have horizontal lap siding similar to that on the Foster 

Denman Building and within the same color palette range.  It will also have a 

concrete tile roof in a color matching the roofs on the adjacent buildings. 

114



Joseph Office Park – Building III Staff Report  
File no. AC-20-099 May 29, 2020 

Page 9 of 11 
 

Landscape buffering 

Per MLDC 10.790, bufferyards are utilized in 
order to minimize potential conflicts caused by 
types and intensity of uses on adjacent 
properties.  The subject site abuts the SFR-4 
zoning district along both its northern and 
western boundary.  As part of the original 
approval of the master plan of Joseph Office 
Park, the applicant will be required to install a 
Type A bufferyard—consisting of a six-foot concrete or masonry wall and ten feet of 
landscaping—along the site’s boundary abutting the SFR-4 zoning district, pursuant 
to MLDC 10.790-1.  

Property Line Adjustment 

The submitted site plans show the proposed building overlapping the north/south 
property line dividing lots 900 and 4000.   

As a condition of approval, the applicant will be required to obtain approval for a 
property line adjustment, or the partitioning of the property, in order to locate the 
proposed building on a single parcel and to comply with building setback 
requirements.  

Master Plan Revisions 

The master site plan has not been before the City Council since the original approval 
in 1995.  As noted above, Ordinance No. 7161 requires that revisions are to be 
reviewed by the City Council.  The submitted Overall Site Plan (Exhibit B) contains 
changes that have never been reviewed and considered by Council. When Phase 2 
was approved by SPAC in 2015, the Commission found the changes were in 
substantial compliance with the original master plan—complying with conditions 1 
through 6 of Ordinance 7161 and Resolution 7816 Section 2—and would not require 
Council approval of an updated Master Site Plan prior to the issuance of a building 
permit.  

As the Overall Site Plan (Exhibit B) submitted with the subject application is virtually 
identical to the Master Site Plan (Exhibit N) approved with AC-15-097, it is staff’s view 
that the Commission can make the same finding with the subject application.  

Facility Adequacy  

Per the agency comments submitted to staff (I-K), it can be found that there are 
adequate facilities to serve the proposed development. 



Joseph Office Park – Building III Staff Report  

File no. AC-20-099 May 29, 2020 

Page 10 of 11 

 

Other Agency Comments 

None 

Committee Comments 

No comments were received from committees such as BPAC.  

Other Comments 

No comments were received from neighbors of the development. 

FINDINGS OF FACT 

1. The proposed development is compatible with uses and development that 

exist on adjacent land;  

The Commission can find that there is sufficient evidence contained in the applicant’s 

findings and the Staff Report to determine that the proposal is compatible with the 

uses and development on adjacent land.  This criterion is satisfied.   

 

2. The proposed development complies with the applicable provisions of all city 

ordinances or the Site Plan and Architectural Commission has approved (an) 

exception(s) as provided in MLDC § 10.253. 

The Commission can find that the proposal can be made to comply with the 

applicable provisions of the Code with the imposition of conditions of approval 

contained in Exhibit A.   This criterion is satisfied.   

FINDINGS AND CONCLUSIONS 

Staff has reviewed the applicant’s findings and conclusions (Exhibit I) and 

recommends the Commission adopt the findings as recommended by staff. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION 

Adopt the findings as recommended by staff and direct staff to prepare the final order 

for approval of AC-20-099 per the staff report dated May 29, 2020, including: 

 Exhibits A through Q; 

 The granting of relief to exceed the maximum number of parking spaces for 

the development; 

 The finding that the changes identified in the submitted Overall Site Plan 

(Exhibit B) are in substantial compliance with the original master plan—

116



Joseph Office Park – Building III Staff Report  

File no. AC-20-099 May 29, 2020 

Page 11 of 11 

 

complying with conditions 1 through 6 of Ordinance 7161 and Resolution 

7816 Section 2—and thereby does not require Council approval of an updated 

Master Site Plan prior to the issuance of a building permit. 

EXHIBITS 

A Conditions of Approval, drafted May 29, 2020.  

B Overall Site Plan, received April 2, 2020. 

C Site Plan, received April 2, 2020. 

D Conceptual Grading Plan, received April 2, 2020. 

E Landscape Plan, received April 2, 2020. 

F Roof/Floor Plan, received April 2, 2020. 

G Exterior Elevations Plan, received April 2, 2020. 

H Applicant’s Narrative, Questionnaire, and Findings of Fact, received April 2, 

2020. 

I Public Works staff report, received May 13, 2020. 

J Medford Water Commission report & map, received May 13, 2020. 

K Medford Fire Department report, received  May 13, 2020. 

L Conditions of approval from AC-01-047, dated May 4, 2001. 

M Original Master Plan approved per AC-01-147, dated February 23, 2001. 

N Revised Master Plan approved per AC-15-097, dated September 3, 2015. 

O Ordinance 7161, approved by City Council on August 6, 1992. 

P Resolution 7816, passed by City Council on February 2, 1995. 

Q Applicant’s lighting plan, received May 27, 2020. 

Vicinity map  

SPAC AGENDA JUNE 5, 2020 
  
 

117



 

 

 
EXHIBIT A 

 

Joseph Office Park – Building III 

AC-20-099 

Conditions of Approval 

May 29, 2020 

 

The Commission finds that the changes identified in the submitted Overall Site Plan (Exhibit 

B) are in substantial compliance with the original master plan—complying with conditions 1 

through 6 of Ordinance 7161 and Resolution 7816 Section 2—and thereby does not require 

Council approval of an updated Master Site Plan prior to the issuance of a building permit. 

 

CODE REQUIRED CONDITIONS 

Prior to the issuance of a building permit for vertical construction, the applicant shall: 

1. Comply with all conditions stipulated by the Public Works Department (Exhibit J). 

2. Comply with all conditions stipulated by the Medford Water Commission (Exhibit K). 

3. Comply with all requirements of the Medford Fire Department (Exhibit L). 

4. Obtain approval from the Planning Director for a property line adjustment in order to 

locate the proposed building on a single parcel and to comply with building setback 

requirements.  

5. Construct a concrete or masonry wall along the westerly and northerly boundaries of 

the subject parcel where the proposed development abuts the SFR-4 zoning district, 

pursuant to MLDC 10.790-1. 

6. Submit revised plans demonstrating compliance with MLDC 10.782 in regards to the 

concealment of HVAC equipment. 

 

 

 

118

KAEvans
Exhibit



PROPERTY LINEPROPERTY LINEPROPERTY LINEPROPERTY LINEPROPERTY LINEPROPERTY LINEPROPERTY LINE
PROPERTY LINEPROPERTY LINE

PR
OP

ER
TY

 LI
NE

PR
OP

ER
TY

 LI
NE

PR
OP

ER
TY

 LI
NE

PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE

PROPERTY LINE
PROPERTY LINE

PROPERTY LINE

FH

N

O

 

P

A

R

K

I

N

G

N
O

R
TH

 P
H
O

EN
IX

 R
O

A
D

BARNETT ROAD

FH

N

O

 

P

A

R

K

I

N

G

N
O

R
TH

 P
H
O

EN
IX

 R
O

A
D

BARNETT ROAD

1

5

3

7

.

0

0

LIMITS OF WORK
(THIS PHASE)

Landscape

Conc. block
retaining wall
see 7/C6

 4' ROW Dedication

CL

39'-0"

N

O

 

P

A

R

K

I

N

G

11
'-0

"

GAS METER

LOT 3000 LOT 3100 LOT 3200 LOT 3300 LOT 3400LOT 307LOT 308LOT 309

FUTURE
OFFICE BUILDING

8,750 SF

N

O

 

P

A

R

K

I

N

G

FUTURE
OFFICE BUILDING

6,056 SF.

FUTURE
OFFICE BUILDING

4,096 SF.

PHASE 1
BUILDING
6048 SF

PHASE 2
BUILDING
6056 SF

PR
OP

ER
TY

 LI
NE

PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE

PR
OP

ER
TY

 LI
NE

PR
OP

ER
TY

 LI
NE

PR
OP

ER
TY

 LI
NE

PR
OP

ER
TY

 LI
NE

PR
OP

ER
TY

 LI
NE

PR
OP

ER
TY

 LI
NE

PR
OP

ER
TY

 LI
NE

PROPOSED
BUILDING 3
8,400 SF

N

O

 

P

A

R

K

I

N

G

PR
OP

ER
TY

 LI
NE

PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE

PR
OP

ER
TY

 LI
NE

PR
OP

ER
TY

 LI
NE

PR
OP

ER
TY

 LI
NE

PR
OP

ER
TY

 LI
NE

PR
OP

ER
TY

 LI
NE

PR
OP

ER
TY

 LI
NE

PR
OP

ER
TY

 LI
NE

7'-0"
1
3
4
.3

'

236.3'

1
3
3
.3

'

N

O

 

P

A

R

K

I

N

G

CB

T

E E

G

PROPERTY LINE
PROPERTY LINE

PROPERTY LINE
PROPERTY LINE

PROPERTY LINE

FUTURE
OFFICE BUILDING

1615 SF.

24

55'

55'

7

17

19 18

10

6

912

C
O

M
P
A
C
T
 
C
A
R

O
N

L
Y

C
O

M
P
A
C
T
 
C
A
R

O
N

L
Y

C
O

M
P
A
C
T
 
C
A
R

O
N

L
Y

C
O

M
P
A
C
T
 
C
A
R

O
N

L
Y

C
O

M
P
A
C
T
 
C
A
R

O
N

L
Y

C
O

M
P
A
C
T
 
C
A
R

O
N

L
Y

C
O

M
P
A
C
T
 
C
A
R

O
N

L
Y

FUTURE
OFFICE BUILDING

8,750 SF.

N

O

 

P

A

R

K

I

N

G

N

O

 

P

A

R

K

I

N

G

N

O

 

P

A

R

K

I

N

G

2"
9'

4"

13'4"

S
LO

PE
 -

1
"

SIM.

4'
-0

"
ED

GE
 O

F 
CO

NC

PLAN

SIDE

ELEVATION
SCALE: 12" = 1'-0"

3'
-0

"

ASTM 2" SCHEDULE 40 STEEL PIPE
HOT DIP GALVANIZED AFTER

FABRICATION OR STAINLESS STEEL

SURFACE MOUNT

CONCRETE
SURFACE

CMU WALL FRONT VIEW

±
6'

 D
EP

EN
DI

NG
 O

N 
GR

AD
E

SIDE

SPLIT FACED
CMU W/

PILASTER & TOP

5'
-6

"
6"

12'-0"

FRONT

PR
OJ

EC
T 

DE
SC

RI
PT

IO
N:

PR
OJ

EC
T 

LO
CA

TI
ON

:

-
PA

RC
EL

:

J
O

S
E

P
H

 O
F

F
IC

E
 P

A
R

K

34
51

 B
A

R
N

E
T

T
 R

O
A

D
 - 

M
E

D
F

O
R

D
, O

R
E

G
O

N
 9

75
04

5/27/20

REVISIONS BY

JOB NO.:

SHEET

DRAWN BY:

PLOT DATE:

TH
IS

 D
O

C
U

M
EN

T,
 T

H
E 

ID
EA

S 
AN

D
 T

H
E 

D
ES

IG
N

S 
IN

C
O

R
PO

R
AT

ED
 H

ER
EI

N
, I

S 
AN

 IN
ST

R
U

M
EN

T 
O

F 
PR

O
FE

SS
IO

N
AL

 S
ER

VI
C

E 
AN

D
 P

R
O

PE
R

TY
 O

F 
O

R
EG

O
N

 A
R

C
H

IT
EC

TU
R

E 
IN

C
., 

AN
D

 IS
 N

O
T 

TO
 B

E 
U

SE
D

 IN
 W

H
O

LE
 O

R
 IN

 P
AR

T,
 F

O
R

 A
N

Y 
O

TH
ER

 P
R

O
JE

C
T,

 W
IT

H
O

U
T 

TH
E 

W
R

IT
TE

N
 A

U
TH

O
R

IZ
AT

IO
N

 O
F 

O
R

EG
O

N
 A

R
C

H
IT

EC
TU

R
E 

IN
C

.  
C

O
PY

R
IG

H
T 

20
20

.

Approved for the Owner By: Date:

ISSUE DATE:

TO VERIFY SCALES                                         BAR SHOULD MEASURE ONE INCH BY ONE SIXTEENTH INCH 
0" 1" SCHEMATIC PLAN

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 I
II

OVERALL DEVELOPMENT SITE PLAN
SCALE : 1" = 40'-0"

TRASH ENCLOSURE DETAILS
SCALE : 1/2"=1'

BICYCLE RACK
SCALE : AS NOTED

001
OVERALL PLAN

AND DETAILS

PROPOSED CMU WALL 
SCALE : AS NOTED

1

2

3

4

119

AutoCAD SHX Text
(2) WELD-ON LIFT OFF HINGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
(2) 2"x2"x " GUSSET PL 14" GUSSET PL 

AutoCAD SHX Text
PL 3"x18"x " 18" 

AutoCAD SHX Text
CANE BOLT

AutoCAD SHX Text
B-DECKING TYP. AT GATES

AutoCAD SHX Text
(2) 2"x2"x " 14" GUSSET PL 

AutoCAD SHX Text
(2) WELD-ON LIFT OFF HINGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
C8"x11.5" CHANNEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
L2"x2"x " 14" ANGLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
METAL GATE ASSEMBLY PAINT TO MATCH BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
L2"x2"x " 14" ANGLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
B-DECK PANELING, TYP. AT GATES 

AutoCAD SHX Text
CANE BOLT

KAEvans
B



PR
OP

ER
TY

 LI
NE

PR
OP

ER
TY

 LI
NE

PR
OP

ER
TY

 LI
NE

PR
OP

ER
TY

 LI
NE

PR
OP

ER
TY

 LI
NE

PR
OP

ER
TY

 LI
NE

PR
OP

ER
TY

 LI
NE

PR
OP

ER
TY

 LI
NE

PR
OP

ER
TY

 LI
NE

PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE

PR
OP

ER
TY

 LI
NE

PROPOSED
BUILDING 3
8,400 SF

N

O

 

P

A

R

K

I

N

G

PR
OP

ER
TY

 LI
NE

PR
OP

ER
TY

 LI
NE

PR
OP

ER
TY

 LI
NE

PR
OP

ER
TY

 LI
NE

PR
OP

ER
TY

 LI
NE

PR
OP

ER
TY

 LI
NE

PR
OP

ER
TY

 LI
NE

PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE

PR
OP

ER
TY

 LI
NE

PR
OP

ER
TY

 LI
NE

PR
OP

ER
TY

 LI
NE

PR
OP

ER
TY

 LI
NE

PR
OP

ER
TY

 LI
NE

PR
OP

ER
TY

 LI
NE

PR
OP

ER
TY

 LI
NE

PR
OP

ER
TY

 LI
NE

PR
OP

ER
TY

 LI
NE

PR
OP

ER
TY

 LI
NE

PR
OP

ER
TY

 LI
NE

PR
OP

ER
TY

 LI
NE

PR
OP

ER
TY

 LI
NE

PR
OP

ER
TY

 LI
NE

PR
OP

ER
TY

 LI
NE

PR
OP

ER
TY

 LI
NE

PR
OP

ER
TY

 LI
NE

PR
OP

ER
TY

 LI
NE

PR
OP

ER
TY

 LI
NE

PR
OP

ER
TY

 LI
NE

PR
OP

ER
TY

 LI
NE

PR
OP

ER
TY

 LI
NE

PR
OP

ER
TY

 LI
NE

PR
OP

ER
TY

 LI
NE

PR
OP

ER
TY

 LI
NE

PR
OP

ER
TY

 LI
NE

PR
OP

ER
TY

 LI
NE

PR
OP

ER
TY

 LI
NE

PR
OP

ER
TY

 LI
NE

PR
OP

ER
TY

 LI
NE

7'-0"

1
3
4
.3

'

236.3'

1
3
3
.3

'

N

O

 

P

A

R

K

I

N

G

CB

T

E E

G

21

17

5

AC PAVING

2'-0"
6'

-0
"

75'-0"

NEW LOT
LIGHT

10'-0"

17'-0"

CONC.
WALK

2'-0"

24'-0"

17'-0"

2'-0"

10 LANDSCAPE
PLANTER

(N) CMU TRASH
ENCLOSURE SEE
DETAIL

NEW LOT
LIGHT

53

(N) 6' MASONRY
WALL

(EX) TRASH
ENCLOSURE

(EX) TRASH
ENCLOSURE

NEW LOT
LIGHT

18

PR
OJ

EC
T 

DE
SC

RI
PT

IO
N:

PR
OJ

EC
T 

LO
CA

TI
ON

:

-
PA

RC
EL

:

J
O

S
E

P
H

 O
F

F
IC

E
 P

A
R

K

34
51

 B
A

R
N

E
T

T
 R

O
A

D
 - 

M
E

D
F

O
R

D
, O

R
E

G
O

N
 9

75
04

5/27/20

REVISIONS BY

JOB NO.:

SHEET

DRAWN BY:

PLOT DATE:

TH
IS

 D
O

C
U

M
EN

T,
 T

H
E 

ID
EA

S 
AN

D
 T

H
E 

D
ES

IG
N

S 
IN

C
O

R
PO

R
AT

ED
 H

ER
EI

N
, I

S 
AN

 IN
ST

R
U

M
EN

T 
O

F 
PR

O
FE

SS
IO

N
AL

 S
ER

VI
C

E 
AN

D
 P

R
O

PE
R

TY
 O

F 
O

R
EG

O
N

 A
R

C
H

IT
EC

TU
R

E 
IN

C
., 

AN
D

 IS
 N

O
T 

TO
 B

E 
U

SE
D

 IN
 W

H
O

LE
 O

R
 IN

 P
AR

T,
 F

O
R

 A
N

Y 
O

TH
ER

 P
R

O
JE

C
T,

 W
IT

H
O

U
T 

TH
E 

W
R

IT
TE

N
 A

U
TH

O
R

IZ
AT

IO
N

 O
F 

O
R

EG
O

N
 A

R
C

H
IT

EC
TU

R
E 

IN
C

.  
C

O
PY

R
IG

H
T 

20
20

.

Approved for the Owner By: Date:

ISSUE DATE:

TO VERIFY SCALES                                         BAR SHOULD MEASURE ONE INCH BY ONE SIXTEENTH INCH 
0" 1" SCHEMATIC PLAN

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 I
II

SITE PLAN PHASE III
SCALE : 1" = 10'-0"

002
SITE PLAN

120

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
001

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
001

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
001

KAEvans
C



PR
OP

ER
TY

 LI
NE

PR
OP

ER
TY

 LI
NE

PR
OP

ER
TY

 LI
NE

PR
OP

ER
TY

 LI
NE

PR
OP

ER
TY

 LI
NE

PR
OP

ER
TY

 LI
NE

PR
OP

ER
TY

 LI
NE

PR
OP

ER
TY

 LI
NE

PR
OP

ER
TY

 LI
NE

PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE

PR
OP

ER
TY

 LI
NE

PROPOSED
BUILDING 3
8,400 SF

N

O

 

P

A

R

K

I

N

G

PR
OP

ER
TY

 LI
NE

PR
OP

ER
TY

 LI
NE

PR
OP

ER
TY

 LI
NE

PR
OP

ER
TY

 LI
NE

PR
OP

ER
TY

 LI
NE

PR
OP

ER
TY

 LI
NE

PR
OP

ER
TY

 LI
NE

PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE

PR
OP

ER
TY

 LI
NE

PR
OP

ER
TY

 LI
NE

PR
OP

ER
TY

 LI
NE

PR
OP

ER
TY

 LI
NE

PR
OP

ER
TY

 LI
NE

PR
OP

ER
TY

 LI
NE

PR
OP

ER
TY

 LI
NE

PR
OP

ER
TY

 LI
NE

PR
OP

ER
TY

 LI
NE

PR
OP

ER
TY

 LI
NE

PR
OP

ER
TY

 LI
NE

PR
OP

ER
TY

 LI
NE

PR
OP

ER
TY

 LI
NE

PR
OP

ER
TY

 LI
NE

PR
OP

ER
TY

 LI
NE

PR
OP

ER
TY

 LI
NE

PR
OP

ER
TY

 LI
NE

PR
OP

ER
TY

 LI
NE

PR
OP

ER
TY

 LI
NE

PR
OP

ER
TY

 LI
NE

PR
OP

ER
TY

 LI
NE

PR
OP

ER
TY

 LI
NE

PR
OP

ER
TY

 LI
NE

PR
OP

ER
TY

 LI
NE

PR
OP

ER
TY

 LI
NE

PR
OP

ER
TY

 LI
NE

PR
OP

ER
TY

 LI
NE

PR
OP

ER
TY

 LI
NE

PR
OP

ER
TY

 LI
NE

PR
OP

ER
TY

 LI
NE

7'-0"

1
3

4
.3

'

236.3'

1
3

3
.3

'

N

O

 

P

A

R

K

I

N

G

CB

T

E E

G

CB

CB

CB
CB

CB

PR
OJ

EC
T 

DE
SC

RI
PT

IO
N:

PR
OJ

EC
T 

LO
CA

TI
ON

:

-
PA

RC
EL

:

J
O

S
E

P
H

 O
F

F
IC

E
 P

A
R

K

34
51

 B
A

R
N

E
T

T
 R

O
A

D
 - 

M
E

D
F

O
R

D
, O

R
E

G
O

N
 9

75
04

5/27/20

REVISIONS BY

JOB NO.:

SHEET

DRAWN BY:

PLOT DATE:

TH
IS

 D
O

C
U

M
EN

T,
 T

H
E 

ID
EA

S 
AN

D
 T

H
E 

D
ES

IG
N

S 
IN

C
O

R
PO

R
AT

ED
 H

ER
EI

N
, I

S 
AN

 IN
ST

R
U

M
EN

T 
O

F 
PR

O
FE

SS
IO

N
AL

 S
ER

VI
C

E 
AN

D
 P

R
O

PE
R

TY
 O

F 
O

R
EG

O
N

 A
R

C
H

IT
EC

TU
R

E 
IN

C
., 

AN
D

 IS
 N

O
T 

TO
 B

E 
U

SE
D

 IN
 W

H
O

LE
 O

R
 IN

 P
AR

T,
 F

O
R

 A
N

Y 
O

TH
ER

 P
R

O
JE

C
T,

 W
IT

H
O

U
T 

TH
E 

W
R

IT
TE

N
 A

U
TH

O
R

IZ
AT

IO
N

 O
F 

O
R

EG
O

N
 A

R
C

H
IT

EC
TU

R
E 

IN
C

.  
C

O
PY

R
IG

H
T 

20
20

.

Approved for the Owner By: Date:

ISSUE DATE:

TO VERIFY SCALES                                         BAR SHOULD MEASURE ONE INCH BY ONE SIXTEENTH INCH 
0" 1" SCHEMATIC PLAN

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 I
II

CONCEPTUAL GRADING PLAN
SCALE : 1" = 10'-0"

003
CONCEPTUAL

GRADING PLAN

121

KAEvans
D



122

KAEvans
E



12
"

12"

12
"

12"

(N) ROOF TILES
MATCHING PHASE II

48
'-0

"
175'-0"

(N) ROOF TILES
MATCHING PHASE II

(N) TYP. METAL GUTTER
MATCHING PHASE II
COLOR AND STYLE

(N) ROOF TILES
MATCHING PHASE II

(N) TYP. METAL GUTTER
MATCHING PHASE II
COLOR AND STYLE

48
'-0

"

8'-0" 3'-4" 7'-0"4'-0"3'-4" 8'-8" 4'-0" 8'-0" 4'-0" 8'-0" 6'-0" 8'-0" 8'-0" 4'-0"4'-0" 4'-0" 4'-0" 4'-0"6'-0" 6'-0"8'-0"8'-0"6'-0"6'-0"8'-0"3'-4" 4'-0"
5'-4"6'-0"

8'-0"

7'-0"6'-0"8'-0"4'-0"8'-0"4'-0"4'-0" 6'-0" 6'-0"6'-0"

14'-0"4'-0"12'-0"24'-0"

4'-0"4'-0" 6'-0"6'-0" 8'-0"8'-0"5'-4"7'-4"7'-0" 6'-4"

6'
-0

"
6'

-0
"

7'
-0

"

6'
-5

 1
/2

"
3'

-0
"

3'
-4

"
3'

-0
"6

'-4
"

7'
-0

"

PR
OJ

EC
T 

DE
SC

RI
PT

IO
N:

PR
OJ

EC
T 

LO
CA

TI
ON

:

-
PA

RC
EL

:

J
O

S
E

P
H

 O
F

F
IC

E
 P

A
R

K

34
51

 B
A

R
N

E
T

T
 R

O
A

D
 - 

M
E

D
F

O
R

D
, O

R
E

G
O

N
 9

75
04

5/27/20

REVISIONS BY

JOB NO.:

SHEET

DRAWN BY:

PLOT DATE:

TH
IS

 D
O

C
U

M
EN

T,
 T

H
E 

ID
EA

S 
AN

D
 T

H
E 

D
ES

IG
N

S 
IN

C
O

R
PO

R
AT

ED
 H

ER
EI

N
, I

S 
AN

 IN
ST

R
U

M
EN

T 
O

F 
PR

O
FE

SS
IO

N
AL

 S
ER

VI
C

E 
AN

D
 P

R
O

PE
R

TY
 O

F 
O

R
EG

O
N

 A
R

C
H

IT
EC

TU
R

E 
IN

C
., 

AN
D

 IS
 N

O
T 

TO
 B

E 
U

SE
D

 IN
 W

H
O

LE
 O

R
 IN

 P
AR

T,
 F

O
R

 A
N

Y 
O

TH
ER

 P
R

O
JE

C
T,

 W
IT

H
O

U
T 

TH
E 

W
R

IT
TE

N
 A

U
TH

O
R

IZ
AT

IO
N

 O
F 

O
R

EG
O

N
 A

R
C

H
IT

EC
TU

R
E 

IN
C

.  
C

O
PY

R
IG

H
T 

20
20

.

Approved for the Owner By: Date:

ISSUE DATE:

TO VERIFY SCALES                                         BAR SHOULD MEASURE ONE INCH BY ONE SIXTEENTH INCH 
0" 1" SCHEMATIC PLAN

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 I
II

004
ROOF PLAN AND

FLOOR PLAN

ROOF PLAN
1/8" = 1'-0"

1

2
FLOOR PLAN
1/8" = 1'-0"

123

AutoCAD SHX Text
5:12 SLOPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
5:12 SLOPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
5:12 SLOPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
VENTED RIDGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
5:12 SLOPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
5:12 SLOPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
5:12 SLOPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
HIP

AutoCAD SHX Text
HIP

AutoCAD SHX Text
VENTED RIDGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
5:12 SLOPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
5:12 SLOPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
5:12 SLOPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
VALLEY

AutoCAD SHX Text
VALLEY

AutoCAD SHX Text
5:12 SLOPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
5:12 SLOPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
VENTED  RIDGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
VENTED  RIDGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
VENTED  RIDGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
VENTED  RIDGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
VENTED  RIDGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
AC

KAEvans
F



GROUND LEVEL 1533.6 O.S.

0' - 0"

T.O STRUCTURE

12' - 0"

T.O. ROOF PEAK

19' - 9"

25' - 7"

T.O. ROOF PEAK

0' - 0"

GROUND LEVEL 1537.56 O.S.

5
12

5
12

EXTERIOR
EMERGENCY
EGRESS LIGHTING

9'
-0

"

3'
-0

"

5
12

5
12

9'
-0

"

3'
-0

"

12
5

25' - 7"

T.O STRUCTURE

12' - 0"

T.O. ROOF PEAK

19' - 9"

T.O. ROOF PEAK

0' - 0"

GROUND LEVEL 1533.6 O.S.GROUND LEVEL 1537.75 O.S.

0' - 0"

GROUND LEVEL 1537.3 O.S.

0' - 0"

T.O STRUCTURE

12' - 0"

T.O. ROOF PEAK

21' - 1"

25' - 7"

T.O. ROOF PEAK

0' - 0"

GROUND LEVEL 1536.75 O.S.

5
12

5
12

EXTERIOR
EMERGENCY
EGRESS LIGHTING

9'
-0

"

3'
-0

"

5
12

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

4'-0"

3'
-0

"

5
12

5
12

25' - 7"

GROUND LEVEL 1537.56 O.S.

0' - 0"

T.O STRUCTURE

12' - 0"

T.O. ROOF PEAK

19' - 9"

T.O. ROOF PEAK

12
5

Exterior

3'-4"

3'
-0

"

T

GROUND LEVEL 1537.3 O.S.

0' - 0"

GROUND LEVEL 1537.6 O.S.

0' - 0"

T

T

T

T

PR
OJ

EC
T 

DE
SC

RI
PT

IO
N:

PR
OJ

EC
T 

LO
CA

TI
ON

:

-
PA

RC
EL

:

J
O

S
E

P
H

 O
F

F
IC

E
 P

A
R

K

34
51

 B
A

R
N

E
T

T
 R

O
A

D
 - 

M
E

D
F

O
R

D
, O

R
E

G
O

N
 9

75
04

5/27/20

REVISIONS BY

JOB NO.:

SHEET

DRAWN BY:

PLOT DATE:

TH
IS

 D
O

C
U

M
EN

T,
 T

H
E 

ID
EA

S 
AN

D
 T

H
E 

D
ES

IG
N

S 
IN

C
O

R
PO

R
AT

ED
 H

ER
EI

N
, I

S 
AN

 IN
ST

R
U

M
EN

T 
O

F 
PR

O
FE

SS
IO

N
AL

 S
ER

VI
C

E 
AN

D
 P

R
O

PE
R

TY
 O

F 
O

R
EG

O
N

 A
R

C
H

IT
EC

TU
R

E 
IN

C
., 

AN
D

 IS
 N

O
T 

TO
 B

E 
U

SE
D

 IN
 W

H
O

LE
 O

R
 IN

 P
AR

T,
 F

O
R

 A
N

Y 
O

TH
ER

 P
R

O
JE

C
T,

 W
IT

H
O

U
T 

TH
E 

W
R

IT
TE

N
 A

U
TH

O
R

IZ
AT

IO
N

 O
F 

O
R

EG
O

N
 A

R
C

H
IT

EC
TU

R
E 

IN
C

.  
C

O
PY

R
IG

H
T 

20
20

.

Approved for the Owner By: Date:

ISSUE DATE:

TO VERIFY SCALES                                         BAR SHOULD MEASURE ONE INCH BY ONE SIXTEENTH INCH 
0" 1" SCHEMATIC PLAN

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 I
II

005
EXTERIOR

ELEVATIONS

EAST ELEVATION
3/16" = 1'-0"

SOUTH ELEVATION
1/8/" = 1'-0"

WEST ELEVATION
3/16" = 1'-0"

NORTH ELEVATION
1/8" = 1'-0"

124

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
BRICK WAINSCOT 6" LAP SIDING AND TRIM HARDIE BOARD CONCRETE ROOF TILE

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
MATERIALS CALLOUT

KAEvans
G



125

KAEvans
H



126



127



 
 

City of Medford 200 S. Ivy Street, Medford, OR 97501 (541) 774-2100 cityofmedford.org 

P:\Staff Reports\AC\2020\AC-20-099 3531 E Barnett Road (TL 900) New Commercial Bldg (Joseph Office Park)\AC-20-099 Staff Report-LD.docx Page 1 of 5 

LD DATE: 5/13/2020 

File Number: AC-20-099 

 

PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT STAFF REPORT 
 

New Commercial Building – Joseph Office Park 
3531 East Barnett Road (TL 900) 
 

Project: Consideration of plans for the construction of Joseph Office Park – Building III, a 

8,400 square foot building on a 1.15-acre parcel. 
 

Location:  Located on the north side of East Barnett Road, approximately 650 feet west of 

North Phoenix Road (3531 East Barnett Road), within the C-S/P (Service Commercial – 

Professional Office) zoning district (371W28DD TL 900). 
 

Applicant:  Applicant, Spectrum Orthotics; Agent, Oregon Architecture, Inc.; Planner, Dustin 

Severs. 
_____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

NOTE: The items listed here shall be completed and accepted prior to the respective issuances of 

permits and certificates: 
 

 Prior to issue of the first building permit, the following items shall be completed and 

accepted: 
 

 Submittal and approval of plans for site grading and drainage, and detention, if 

applicable. 

 Completion of all public improvements, if required.  The Applicant may provide 

security for 120% of the improvements prior to issuance of building permits.  

Construction plans for the improvements shall be approved by the Public Works 

Engineering Division prior to acceptance of security. 

 Items A – D, unless noted otherwise. 
 

 Prior to issue of Certificate-of-Occupancy for completed structures, the following items 

shall be completed and accepted: 
  

 Paving of all on-site parking and vehicle maneuvering areas 

 Verification by the design Engineer that the stormwater quality and detention system 

was constructed per the approved plan, if applicable. 

 Completion of all public improvements, if applicable. 

  

128

KAEvans
I



 

City of Medford 200 S. Ivy Street, Medford, OR 97501 (541) 774-2100 cityofmedford.org 

P:\Staff Reports\AC\2020\AC-20-099 3531 E Barnett Road (TL 900) New Commercial Bldg (Joseph Office Park)\AC-20-099 Staff Report-LD.docx  Page 2 of 5 

A. STREETS 
 

1. Dedications 
 

East Barnett Road classified as a Major Arterial street within the Medford Land 

Development Code (MLDC), Section 10.428.  Right-of-way has already been dedicated with 

Planning Action AC-15-097 (Recording #2018-034717). No additional right-of-way is 

required. 
 

There is currently a 10-foot PUE along the frontage of East Barnett Road that was dedicated 

with Planning Action AC-15-097 (Recording #2018-034717). 
 

2. Public Improvements 
 

a. Public Streets 
 

East Barnett Road – All street section improvements have been completed including 

pavement, curb and gutter, sidewalks and street lights (P662). No additional public 

improvements are required. 
 

NOTE: All projects subject to Site Plan and Architectural Review shall be required per MLDC 

10.501 (6), as a condition of approval, to repair all frontage sidewalks as determined by the 

Engineering Division. When attached as a condition of approval of a Site Plan and 

Architectural.  Review application the sidewalk maintenance procedures set forth in 

Chapter 3, Section 3.025, Notice on Hearing of City Repair of Sidewalks, through 3.035, 

Notice of Sidewalk Repair, are hereby superseded. 
 

b. Street Lights and Signing 
 

No additional street lights or signs are required. 
 

The Developer shall be responsible for the preservation and re-installation of all signs 

removed during demolition and site preparation work.  The Developer’s contractor shall 

coordinate with the City of Medford Public Works, Maintenance and Operations Division to 

remove any existing signs and place new signs provided by Medford Public Works 

Department and paid for by the Developer. 
 

c. Pavement Moratoriums 
 

There is no pavement cutting moratorium currently in effect along this developments 

frontage to East Barnett Road.  
 

B. SANITARY SEWERS 
 

The proposed development is situated within the Medford sewer service area.  The 

129



 

City of Medford 200 S. Ivy Street, Medford, OR 97501 (541) 774-2100 cityofmedford.org 

P:\Staff Reports\AC\2020\AC-20-099 3531 E Barnett Road (TL 900) New Commercial Bldg (Joseph Office Park)\AC-20-099 Staff Report-LD.docx  Page 3 of 5 

Developer shall provide one separate individual service lateral to the site or ensure that the 

site is served by an individual service lateral.  
 

C. STORM DRAINAGE 
 

1. Drainage Plan 
 

A comprehensive drainage plan showing the entire project site with sufficient spot 

elevations to determine direction of runoff to the proposed drainage system, and also 

showing elevations on the proposed drainage system, shall be submitted with the first 

building permit application for approval. 
 

The Developer shall provide copies of either a Joint Use Maintenance Agreement or a 

private stormdrain easement for any stormwater draining onto or from adjacent private 

property. 
 

A Site/Utility Plan shall be submitted with the building permit application to show the 

location of existing or proposed stormdrain lateral/s for the site. 
 

All private storm drain lines shall be located outside of the public right-of-way and/or any 

public utility easements (PUE). 
 

2. Grading 
 

A comprehensive grading plan showing the relationship between adjacent property and 

the proposed development will be submitted with the improvement plans for approval. 

Grading on this development shall not block drainage from an adjacent property or 

concentrate drainage onto an adjacent property without an easement. The Developer shall 

be responsible that the final grading of the development shall be in compliance with the 

approved grading plan. 
 

3. Detention and Water Quality 
 

Stormwater quality and detention facilities shall be required in accordance with MLDC 

Section 10.481 and 10.729. 
 

4. Verification 
 

Upon completion of the project, and prior to certificate of occupancy of the building, the 

Developer’s design Engineer shall verify that the construction of the stormwater quality and 

detention system was constructed per plan.  Verification shall be in writing and submitted 

to the Engineering Division of Public Works.  Reference Rogue Valley Stormwater Quality 

Design Manual, Appendix I, Technical Requirements. 
 

 

130



 

City of Medford 200 S. Ivy Street, Medford, OR 97501 (541) 774-2100 cityofmedford.org 

P:\Staff Reports\AC\2020\AC-20-099 3531 E Barnett Road (TL 900) New Commercial Bldg (Joseph Office Park)\AC-20-099 Staff Report-LD.docx  Page 4 of 5 

5. Erosion Prevention and Sediment Control 
 

All development that disturbs 5,000 square feet or greater shall require an Erosion 

Prevention and Sediment Control Plan.  Developments that disturb one acre and greater 

shall require a 1200C permit from the Department of Environmental Quality (DEQ).  Erosion 

Prevention and Sediment Control Plans shall be submitted to the Building Department with 

the project plans for development.  All disturbed areas shall be covered with vegetation or 

properly stabilized prior to certificate of occupancy.  
 

D. GENERAL CONDITIONS 
 

1. Construction and Inspection 
 

The Developer or Developer’s contractor shall obtain appropriate right-of-way permits 

from the Department of Public Works prior to commencing any work within the public 

right-of-way that is not included within the scope of work described within approved public 

improvement plans.   
 

Contractors proposing to do work on public streets (including street lights), sewers, or 

storm drains shall ‘prequalify’ with the Engineering Division prior to starting work.  

Contractors shall work off a set of public improvement drawings that have been approved 

by the City of Medford Engineering Division. Any work within the County right-of-way shall 

require a separately issued permit from the County. 
 

For City of Medford facilities, the Public Works Maintenance Division requires that public 

sanitary sewer and storm drain mains be inspected by video camera prior to acceptance of 

these systems by the City. 
 

Where applicable, the Developer shall bear all expenses resulting from the adjustment of 

manholes to finish grades as a result of changes in the finish street grade. 
 

2. Site Improvements 
 

All on-site parking and vehicle maneuvering areas related to this development shall be 

paved in accordance with MLDC, Section 10.746, prior to issuance of certificate of 

occupancy for any structures on the site.  Curbs shall be constructed around the perimeter 

of all parking and maneuvering areas that are adjacent to landscaping or unpaved areas 

related to this site.  Curbs may be deleted or curb cuts provided wherever pavement drains 

to a water quality facility. 
 

3. System Development Charges (SDC) 
 

Buildings in this development are subject to system development charges (SDCs).  All SDC 

fees shall be paid at the time individual building permits are issued 
 

Prepared by: Jodi K Cope       Reviewed by: Doug Burroughs  

131



 

City of Medford 200 S. Ivy Street, Medford, OR 97501 (541) 774-2100 cityofmedford.org 

P:\Staff Reports\AC\2020\AC-20-099 3531 E Barnett Road (TL 900) New Commercial Bldg (Joseph Office Park)\AC-20-099 Staff Report-LD.docx  Page 5 of 5 

SUMMARY CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 
New Commercial Building – Joseph Office Park 
3531 East Barnett Road (TL 900)       AC-20-099 

 

A. Streets 
 

1. Street Dedications to the Public: 

 East Barnett Road – No additional right-of-way required. 

 10-foot Public Utility Easement has been dedicated. 
 

2. Improvements: 
 

Public Streets 

 East Barnett Road – Improvements have been completed. 
 

Lighting and Signing 

 No additional street lights are required. 
 

Other 

 No pavement moratorium currently in effect along this frontage to East Barnett Road. 
 

B. Sanitary Sewer: 

 Ensure or construct separate individual sanitary sewer connection. 

o Cap remaining unused laterals at the main. 
 

C. Storm Drainage: 

 Provide a comprehensive grading and drainage plan. 

 Provide water quality and detention facilities, calculations and O&M Manual. 

 Provide engineers verification of stormwater facility construction. 

 Provide copy of an approved Erosion Control Permit (1200C) from DEQ for this project. 
 

 

 = City Code Requirement 

o = Discretionary recommendations/comments 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The above summary is for convenience only and does not supersede or negate the full report in any way.  If there is any 

discrepancy between the above list and the full report, the full report shall govern.  Refer to the full report for details on each 

item as well as miscellaneous requirements for the project, including requirements for public improvement plans 

(Construction Plans), design requirements, phasing, draft and final plat processes, permits, system development charges, 

pavement moratoriums and construction inspection. 

132



G

G

G!.

G!.

G!.

G!.

G!.

G!.

G!. G!.

³

!#A

!#A

!#A

&É

&É&É

&É

! (

! (

! (

! (

! (

! (

! (

! (! (

! (

! (

! (

!R

!R

!R !R

!R

!R

!4
!4

!4!4
!4!4

!4

!4!4

!4!4

!4!4

!4!4
!4!4

!4!4
!4!4

!4

!4

!4

!4
!4

!4!4

!4
!4

!4

!4

!4
!4

15
60

15
50

15
40

1540

1540

8 inch Plug
8 inch Plug

1'
' C

1'
' C

1'
' C

1'
' C

1'' C

2'
' C

1'' C

1''
 C

1'
' C

1'
' C1'
' C

1'' C

1'' C

1'' C

1'
' C1'
' C1'
' C

1'
' C

35053519

3551

3511

3482

3530

703

910

3531

3551

3520

3595

3517

3529

3497
3477 3499

3551

3492

3525
3521

3507

3512

701

3551

3510

3527

3518 3587

3472

3506
3516

3487

3513 3501

8'' DI 2019

12'' DI 1980

16
'' D

I 1
98
3

6
'' 
D
I 
1
9
9
9

8'' DI 2009

1
6
'' 
D
I 
1
9
9
4

8'' DI 2007

8
'' 
D
I 
1
9
9
3

1
6
'' 
D
I 
1
9
8
0

8'' DI 1994

8
'' 
D
I 
2
0
0
7

6'' DI 1984

8'' DI 1984

H2197
Elev: 1544 ft

H2199 Elev: 1541 ft

H2200 Elev: 1556 ft

H2201
Elev: 1554 ft

H2211
Elev: 1539 ft

H4794
Elev: 1536 ft

H5055
Elev: 1543 ft H5056

Elev: 1551 ft

6'' TV1366

6'' TV1367

8'' TV1370
8'' TV2405

16'' BV2672

16'' BV2673

12'' BV2674

16'' BV2675

6'' GV5629

4'' GV5630

6'' GV5631

8'' GV5632

6'' GV5663

8'' GV5668
8'' GV5669

8'' GV11272

8'' GV11287

8" TV11724

8" TV11727

6" GV11725
6" GV11726

6" GV12781

4'' FS

975
1 1/2M

955
1 1/2M

3/4M3/4MM

3/4M

703
3/4M

3519
3/4M

3521
3/4M

3518
3/4M3520

3/4M

3517
3/4M

3513
3/4M

3512
3/4M

3516
3/4M 3506

3/4M
3510
3/4M

3507
3/4M

3511
3/4M

3505
3/4M

3501
3/4M

701
3/4M3482

3/4M

3487
3/4M

3497
3/4M

3525
3/4M

3527
3/4M

3533
3/4M

3529
3/4M

3531
1M

3499
3/4M

3551
2M

M

N
 P
h
o
en
ix
 R
d

E Barnett Rd
E Barnett Rd

E
as
tr
id
g
e 
D
r

Michael Park Dr

Parkway Dr !R
"P
;̄C

This map is based on a digital database compiled by  Medford Water Commission from a
variety of sources. Medford Water Commission cannot accept responsibility for errors,
omissions, or positional accuracy. There are no warrantees, expressed or implied.

Legend

Water Mains:

Urban Growth Boundary

City Limits

Tax Lots

!RReservoir

"PPump Station

Control Station;̄C

Sample Station

Air Valve

³ Fire Service

Hydrant

Reducer#

Blow Off

Plugs-Caps

Abandoned Main

Active Main

S

!#A

T"B

G

G!.

Reservoir Drain Pipe

Pressure Zone Line

Boundaries:

MWC Facilities:

Butterfly Valve

Gate Valve

Tapping Valve

&É

! (

!R

Water Valves:

Water Meters:
Active Meter

On Well

Unknown

Vacant

!4

!4

!4

!4

Path: R:\Departments\GIS\MXDs\Rods MXDs\Rods ArcGIS Pro - Multi-Layout - 3-13-20.aprx

Date: 5/12/2020

0 50 10025
Feet

Scale: 1"= 100'

Water Facility Map
for

City of Medford
Planning App:
AC-20-099

May 8, 2020

"Zone 1"
Pressure Zone

(Elev: 1500'-1650')

133



  

      BOARD OF WATER COMMISSIONERS 

                 Staff Memo 
 

R:\Departments\Engineering\Land Development\ac20099.docx                            Page 1 of 2 

TO: Planning Department, City of Medford 

FROM: Rodney Grehn P.E., Water Commission Staff Engineer 

SUBJECT: AC-20-099 

PARCEL ID: 371W28BB TL 900 

PROJECT: Consideration of plans for the construction of Joseph Office Park – Building III, a 
8,400 square foot building on a 1.15-acre parcel located on the north side of East 
Barnett Road, approximately 650 feet west of North Phoenix Road (3531 East 
Barnett Road), within the C-S/P (Service Commercial – Professional Office) 
zoning district (371W28DD TL 900). Applicant, Spectrum Orthotics; Agent, 
Oregon Architecture, Inc.; Planner, Dustin Severs. 

DATE: May 13, 2020 

 
I have reviewed the above plan authorization application as requested.  Conditions for approval and 
comments are as follows: 
 
CONDITIONS 

1. The water facility planning/design/construction process will be done in accordance with the 
Medford Water Commission (MWC) “Regulations Governing Water Service” and “Standards 
For Water Facilities/Fire Protection Systems/Backflow Prevention Devices.” 

2. All parcels/lots of proposed property divisions will be required to have metered water service 
prior to recordation of final map, unless otherwise arranged with MWC. Coordinate approved 
location of proposed water meter for this building. 

3. Applicant shall coordinate with Medford Fire Department for proposed Fire Hydrant location for 
this proposed new building. 

4. Installation of an Oregon Health Authority approved backflow device is required for all 
commercial, industrial, municipal, and multi-family developments. New backflow devices 
shall be tested by an Oregon certified backflow assembly tester. See MWC website for list 
of certified testers at the following web link http://www.medfordwater.org/Page.asp?NavID=35 . 

5. Static water pressure is expected to be around 85 psi. Installation of Pressure 
Reducing Valves (PRV) is required per Uniform Plumbing Code. Pressure 
Reducing Valves shall be installed on the “private” side of the water meter. PRV’s 
shall be located as close as possible to the water meter serving the parcel being 
served. 

Continued to Next Page 

 

 

134

KAEvans
J



  

      BOARD OF WATER COMMISSIONERS 

                 Staff Memo 
 

R:\Departments\Engineering\Land Development\ac20099.docx                            Page 2 of 2 

Continued from Previous Page 
 

COMMENTS 

1. Off-site water line installation is not required. 

2. MWC-metered water service does exist to this property; the existing building at 103-107 has a 
2-inch water meter. 

3. Access to MWC water lines is available. There is an existing 16-inch water line along the west 
side of N Phoenix Road. There are existing “on-site” 8-inch water lines. (See Attached Water 
Facility Map). 

135



Reviewed By: Kleinberg, Greg Review Date: 5/12/2020
Meeting Date: 5/13/2020

LD File #: AC20099

Planner: Dustin Severs

Applicant: Spectrum Orthotics

Site Name: Joseph Office Park Building III

Project Location: 3531 East Barnett Road

ProjectDescription: Consideration of plans for the construction of Joseph Office Park – Building III, a 8,400 square foot
building on a 1.15-acre parcel located on the north side of East Barnett Road, approximately 650 feet
west of North Phoenix Road (3531 East Barnett Road), within the C-S/P (Service Commercial –
Professional Office) zoning district (371W28DD TL 900).

Conditions
Reference Comments Description

505.1 Address
numbers
must be
visible on
the
building.

Address identification. New and existing buildings shall be provided with approved address
identification. The address identification shall be legible and placed in a position that is visible
from the street or road fronting the property. Address identification characters shall contrast
with their background. Address numbers shall be Arabic numbers or alphabetical letters.
Numbers shall not be spelled out. Each character shall be not less than 4 inches (102 mm) high
with a minimum stroke width of / inch (12.7 mm). Where required by the fire code official ,
address identification shall be provided in additional approved locations to facilitate emergency
response. Where access is by means of a private road and the building cannot be viewed from
the public way , a monument, pole or other sign or means shall be used to identify the
structure. Address identification shall be maintained.

OFC
507.5.1

One fire
hydrant will
be required
in a parking
island
located
near the
northeast
corner of
the
building.

Where a portion of the facility or building hereafter constructed or moved into or within the
jurisdiction is more than 400 feet (122 m) from a hydrant on a fire apparatus access road, as
measured by an approved route around the exterior of the facility or building, on-site fire
hydrants and mains shall be provided where required by the fire code official.

Exceptions:
1. For Group R-3 and Group U occupancies, the distance requirement shall be 600 feet (183 m).
2. For buildings equipped throughout with an approved automatic sprinkler system installed in
accordance with Section 903.3.1.1 or 903.3.1.2, the distance requirement shall be 600 feet (183
m).

The approved water supply for fire protection (hydrants) is required to be installed prior to
construction when combustible material arrives at the site.

Plans and specifications for fire hydrant system shall be submitted to Medford Fire Department
for review and approval prior to construction. Submittal shall include a copy of this review (OFC
501.3).

Medford Fire-Rescue Land Development Report

Review/Project Information

Specific Development Requirements for Access & Water Supply

Page 1 of 2          136

KAEvans
K



OFC
503.4;
D103.6;
D103.6.1;
D103.6.2

Parking
shall be
marked
(painted/st
enciled
curbs) as
prohibited
along the
fire lanes.

Fire apparatus access roads 20-26' wide shall be posted on both sides as a fire lane. Fire
apparatus access roads more than 26' to 32' wide shall be posted on one side as a fire lane
(OFC D103.6.1).

Where parking is prohibited for fire department vehicle access purposes, NO PARKING-FIRE
LANE signs shall be spaced at minimum 50' intervals along the fire lane (minimum 75' intervals in
1 & 2 family residential areas) and at fire department designated turn-around's. The signs shall
have red letters on a white background stating "NO PARKING-FIRE LANE" (See handout). 

For privately owned properties, posting/marking of fire lanes may be accomplished by any of the
following alternatives to the above requirement (consult with the Fire Department for the best
option): 

Alternative #1:
Curbs shall be painted red along the entire distance of the fire department access. Minimum 4"
white letters stating "NO PARKING-FIRE LANE" shall be stenciled on the curb at 25-foot
intervals.

Alternative #2:
Asphalt shall be striped yellow or red along the entire distance of the fire department access.
The stripes shall be at least 6" wide, be a minimum 24" apart, be placed at a minimum 30-60
degree angle to the perimeter stripes, and run parallel to each other. Letters stating "NO
PARKING-FIRE LANE" shall be stenciled on the asphalt at 25-foot intervals. 

Fire apparatus access roads shall not be obstructed in any manner, including the parking of
vehicles. The minimum widths (20' wide) and clearances (13' 6" vertical) shall be maintained at all
times (OFC 503.4; ORS 98.810-12).

This restriction shall be recorded on the property deed as a requirement for future
construction. 

A brochure is available on our website at:

http://www.ci.medford.or.us/Files/Fire%20Lane%20Brochure.pdf

Development shall comply with access and water supply requirements in accordance with the Oregon Fire Code in affect at
the time of development submittal. Fire apparatus access roads are required to be installed prior to the time of construction.
The approved water supply for fire protection (fire hydrants) is required to be installed prior to construction when
combustible material arrives at the site.

Specific fire protection systems may be required in accordance with the Oregon Fire Code.
This plan review shall not prevent the correction of errors or violations that are found to exist during construction. This plan
review is based on information provided only.

Design and installation shall meet the Oregon requirements of the International Fire, Building, Mechanicial Codes and
applicable NFPA Standards.

Construction General Information/Requirements

Medford Fire-Rescue, 200 S Ivy St. Rm 180, Medford OR 97501 541-774-2300

www.medfordfirerescue.org

Page 2 of 2          137



138

KAEvans
L



139



140

KAEvans
M



141

KAEvans
N



142

KAEvans
O



143



144

KAEvans
P



2.7

2.3

1.9

1.6

0.9

0.5

0.5

0.6

0.6

0.6

0.6

0.6

0.6

0.6

0.6

0.6

0.6

0.6

0.6

0.5

0.5

0.4

3.6

3.1

2.3

1.8

1.0

0.6

0.6

0.7

0.7

0.8

0.8

0.8

0.8

0.8

0.8

0.8

0.8

0.8

0.7

0.6

0.5

0.5

0.4

4.0

3.5

2.5

1.8

1.0

0.8

0.8

0.8

0.9

1.0

1.0

1.0

1.0

1.0

1.0

1.0

1.0

1.0

0.9

0.8

0.6

0.6

0.5

4.0

3.5

2.5

1.9

1.2

0.9

0.9

0.9

1.0

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.4

1.4

1.4

1.4

1.3

1.2

1.0

0.9

0.7

0.6

0.5

3.6

3.0

2.4

2.0

1.3

1.0

1.0

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.5

1.6

1.6

1.5

1.5

1.5

1.5

1.3

1.1

1.0

0.8

0.7

0.6

2.8

2.5

2.2

2.0

1.4

1.2

1.2

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

1.7

1.7

1.7

1.7

1.6

1.5

1.3

1.2

1.0

0.8

0.7

0.6

2.2

2.1

2.0

2.0

1.6

1.4

1.3

1.3

1.3

1.4

1.5

1.6

1.7

1.9

1.8

1.6

1.4

1.3

1.1

1.0

0.8

0.7

0.6

2.3

2.3

2.3

2.2

1.9

1.6

1.4

1.4

1.3

1.4

1.5

1.7

2.0

2.2

2.1

1.8

1.5

1.3

1.1

0.9

0.8

0.6

0.5

3.0

3.0

3.1

2.8

2.3

1.8

1.5

1.4

1.4

1.4

1.6

1.8

2.1

2.1

2.2

2.0

1.6

1.3

1.1

0.9

0.7

0.6

0.5

4.1

4.1

4.1

3.6

2.8

2.3

1.9

1.7

1.5

1.5

1.8

2.2

2.6

2.5

2.8

2.4

1.9

1.5

1.2

1.0

0.9

0.8

0.6

5.6

5.6

5.1

4.1

3.3

2.7

2.3

2.0

1.9

1.9

2.2

2.7

3.2

3.4

3.4

3.0

2.4

1.9

1.5

1.3

1.1

0.9

0.7

7.7

7.3

6.1

4.8

3.7

2.8

2.1

1.7

1.5

1.5

1.8

2.2

2.6

2.5

2.8

2.4

1.9

1.5

1.2

1.0

0.9

0.7

0.6

8.0

5.8

4.4

3.5

2.6

1.9

1.6

1.4

1.4

1.6

1.8

2.1

2.1

2.2

2.0

1.7

1.4

1.1

0.9

0.7

0.6

0.5

1.5

1.7

2.1

2.3

2.2

1.9

1.6

1.3

1.1

1.0

0.8

0.7

0.5

1.5

1.7

1.9

2.1

2.0

1.8

1.6

1.4

1.2

1.0

0.9

0.7

0.6

1.7

1.9

2.0

2.0

1.9

1.9

1.7

1.5

1.3

1.1

0.9

0.8

0.6

2.0

2.1

2.1

2.0

1.9

1.9

1.7

1.5

1.3

1.1

0.9

0.8

0.6

2.2

2.4

2.3

2.1

2.0

1.9

1.7

1.5

1.3

1.0

0.9

0.7

0.6

2.6

2.7

2.4

2.1

1.8

1.7

1.6

1.4

1.2

1.1

0.9

0.8

0.7

3.2

3.1

2.7

2.3

1.9

1.6

1.5

1.4

1.3

1.2

1.0

0.9

0.8

4.3

3.8

3.2

2.6

2.0

1.6

1.4

1.4

1.4

1.3

1.2

1.0

1.0

5.5

4.8

3.9

2.9

2.1

1.5

1.4

1.5

1.5

1.5

1.4

1.2

1.2

6.8

5.8

4.4

3.0

2.0

1.4

1.5

1.7

1.8

2.0

2.1

1.8

1.8

8.2

6.0

4.3

2.9

1.8

1.3

1.5

2.0

2.2

2.7

3.0

2.8

2.6

7.9

5.9

4.3

2.9

1.8

1.3

1.5

2.1

2.7

3.4

3.8

3.4

3.1

6.3

5.4

4.2

2.9

1.9

1.3

1.5

2.1

2.8

3.8

3.9

3.5

2.4

4.9

4.2

3.6

2.7

1.9

1.4

1.6

2.2

2.8

3.8

3.9

3.4

3.0

3.7

3.3

2.8

2.3

1.8

1.4

1.7

2.2

2.6

3.1

3.5

3.2

3.0

2.8

2.8

2.4

2.0

1.6

1.3

1.6

2.0

2.1

2.4

2.6

2.4

2.3

2.4

2.5

2.2

1.9

1.5

1.3

1.5

1.7

1.7

1.8

1.8

1.6

1.6

2.4

2.5

2.2

1.9

1.5

1.3

1.4

1.6

1.6

1.7

1.5

1.3

1.4

2.8

2.8

2.4

2.0

1.6

1.3

1.3

1.5

1.6

1.6

1.5

1.3

1.4

3.7

3.3

2.9

2.3

1.8

1.4

1.3

1.5

1.6

1.6

1.5

1.3

1.3

4.8

4.3

3.7

2.8

1.9

1.3

1.4

1.7

1.8

2.0

2.2

2.0

1.9

6.2

5.6

4.3

2.9

1.9

1.3

1.4

1.9

2.2

2.6

3.0

2.9

2.7

8.1

6.2

4.4

2.9

1.9

1.2

1.4

2.0

2.6

3.4

3.7

3.3

3.1

8.5

6.4

4.6

3.0

1.9

1.3

1.4

1.9

2.6

3.6

3.8

3.5

1.8

6.7

6.0

4.6

3.2

2.1

1.4

1.5

2.1

2.6

3.6

3.8

3.3

3.0

4.9

4.8

3.9

3.0

2.2

1.6

1.6

2.0

2.3

2.8

3.3

3.1

2.9

4.0

3.8

3.2

2.6

2.0

1.6

1.6

1.9

2.0

2.2

2.3

2.1

2.1

3.2

3.3

2.9

2.3

1.8

1.5

1.5

1.6

1.6

1.6

1.5

1.3

1.3

2.9

3.0

2.7

2.2

1.7

1.4

1.4

1.6

1.6

1.5

1.4

1.2

1.2

3.1

3.0

2.7

2.2

1.8

1.4

1.4

1.5

1.5

1.5

1.4

1.2

1.2

3.7

3.4

2.9

2.4

1.9

1.4

1.4

1.5

1.5

1.5

1.4

1.2

1.2

4.7

4.2

3.6

2.8

2.0

1.4

1.4

1.6

1.7

1.8

1.9

1.7

1.7

6.0

5.4

4.3

3.0

1.9

1.3

1.4

1.8

2.0

2.4

2.8

2.6

2.5

7.8

6.2

4.4

2.9

1.8

1.2

1.4

1.9

2.5

3.2

3.6

3.3

3.0

8.6

6.3

4.5

2.9

1.8

1.2

1.3

1.9

2.6

3.6

3.8

3.4

2.5

7.3

6.2

4.5

3.0

1.9

1.3

1.3

1.9

2.6

3.6

3.8

3.3

3.0

7.4

8.3

7.2

5.4

4.2

3.4

2.5

2.0

2.8

4.9

5.3

4.9

3.9

2.9

2.0

1.3

1.4

1.9

2.3

2.9

3.4

3.1

2.9

5.9

5.9

5.9

4.9

3.7

3.1

2.3

1.7

1.6

3.9

4.0

3.7

3.0

2.3

1.7

1.3

1.4

1.7

1.8

2.2

2.4

2.3

2.2

4.2

4.2

4.2

3.8

3.0

2.4

1.8

1.4

1.4

2.9

2.9

2.7

2.2

1.8

1.4

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

1.5

1.3

1.3

2.7

2.7

2.7

2.7

2.3

1.8

1.4

1.0

1.0

1.9

2.0

1.9

1.7

1.4

1.0

0.8

0.9

1.0

1.0

1.1

1.0

0.8

0.9

1.6

1.6

1.6

1.7

1.6

1.3

1.0

0.8

0.7

1.2

1.3

1.2

1.2

1.0

0.8

0.6

0.7

0.8

0.8

0.8

0.7

0.6

0.60.3

8.9

0.10.10.10.10.10.10.10.10.10.10.10.10.10.10.10.10.10.10.20.20.20.20.20.20.20.20.30.30.30.30.30.30.30.30.30.40.30.30.30.30.30.30.30.30.30.20.2

0.2

0.2

0.3

0.3

0.3

0.4

0.4

0.4

0.4

0.4

0.4

0.4

0.4

0.4

0.4

0.4

0.4

0.4

0.4

0.4

0.6

0.9

1.0

1.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

1.1

1.1

P5-1

E-1

E-2

E-3

E-4

P4-2

P4-3

P4-1

E-5

P4-4

Schedule

Symbol Label Quantity Manufacturer Catalog Number Description Lamp

Number 

Lamps

Filename Lumens Per Lamp Light Loss Factor Wattage

P5

1 Lithonia Lighting DSX1 LED P1 50K TFTM MVOLT DSX1 LED P1 50K TFTM MVOLT LED 1 DSX1_LED_P1_50K_TFTM_MVOL

T.ies

7051 1 108

Lithonia Lighting DSX1 LED P1 50K TFTM MVOLT DSX1 LED P1 50K TFTM MVOLT LED 1 DSX1_LED_P1_50K_TFTM_MVOL

T.ies

7051 1 54

Lithonia Lighting DSX1 LED P1 50K TFTM MVOLT DSX1 LED P1 50K TFTM MVOLT LED 1 DSX1_LED_P1_50K_TFTM_MVOL

T.ies

7051 1 54

P4

4 Lithonia Lighting DSX0 LED P2 30K T5M MVOLT HS DSX0 LED P2 30K T5M MVOLT with houseside 

shield

LED 1 DSX0_LED_P2_30K_T5M_MVOLT

_HS.ies

4175 1 49

E

5 Lithonia Lighting DSX1 LED P2 50K T4M MVOLT DSX1 LED P2 50K T4M MVOLT LED 1 DSX1_LED_P2_50K_T4M_MVOLT

.ies

8817 1 70

B1

0 Lithonia Lighting KBA8 LED 16C 700 40K SYM MVOLT KBA8 WITH 4 LIGHT BOARDS (16 LEDs), 700mA 

DRIVER, 4000K COLOR TEMP, AND SYMMETRIC 

OPTIC

LED 1 KBA8_LED_16C_700_40K_SYM_

MVOLT.ies

2022 1 39

Statistics

Description Symbol Min Avg/Min Avg Max Max/Min

Calc Zone #2 0.3 fc 7.3:1 2.2 fc 8.9 fc 29.7:1

Calc Zone #3 0.0 fc N/A 0.3 fc 1.1 fc N/A

PR
OJ

EC
T 

DE
SC

RI
PT

IO
N:

PR
OJ

EC
T 

LO
CA

TI
ON

:

-
PA

RC
EL

:

J
O

S
E

P
H

 O
F

F
IC

E
 P

A
R

K

34
51

 B
A

R
N

E
T

T
 R

O
A

D
 - 

M
E

D
F

O
R

D
, O

R
E

G
O

N
 9

75
04

5/27/20

REVISIONS BY

JOB NO.:

SHEET

DRAWN BY:

PLOT DATE:

TH
IS

 D
O

C
U

M
EN

T,
 T

H
E 

ID
EA

S 
AN

D
 T

H
E 

D
ES

IG
N

S 
IN

C
O

R
PO

R
AT

ED
 H

ER
EI

N
, I

S 
AN

 IN
ST

R
U

M
EN

T 
O

F 
PR

O
FE

SS
IO

N
AL

 S
ER

VI
C

E 
AN

D
 P

R
O

PE
R

TY
 O

F 
O

R
EG

O
N

 A
R

C
H

IT
EC

TU
R

E 
IN

C
., 

AN
D

 IS
 N

O
T 

TO
 B

E 
U

SE
D

 IN
 W

H
O

LE
 O

R
 IN

 P
AR

T,
 F

O
R

 A
N

Y 
O

TH
ER

 P
R

O
JE

C
T,

 W
IT

H
O

U
T 

TH
E 

W
R

IT
TE

N
 A

U
TH

O
R

IZ
AT

IO
N

 O
F 

O
R

EG
O

N
 A

R
C

H
IT

EC
TU

R
E 

IN
C

.  
C

O
PY

R
IG

H
T 

20
20

.

Approved for the Owner By: Date:

ISSUE DATE:

TO VERIFY SCALES                                         BAR SHOULD MEASURE ONE INCH BY ONE SIXTEENTH INCH 
0" 1" SCHEMATIC PLAN

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 I
II

006
ELECTRICAL PLAN

ELECTRICAL PLAN
NTS

145

KAEvans
Q



Spectrum Orthodics
Joseph Office Park Building 3

4/17/2020

Project Name:

Map/Taxlot:

Su
mm

erw
oo

d D
r

Golf View Dr

Parkway Dr

Ma
aik

e D
r

Century Way

Mo
un

tai
n V

iew
 D

r

Miller Ct

E Barnett Rd

Al
de

r C
ree

k D
r

Hogan Ave

Burton Dr

Brannon Dr

Eastri
dg

e D
r

Michael Park Dr

E Barnett Rd

N
Ph

oe
nix

Rd

4

3

2

1

AC-20-099
Vicinity

Map

File Number:

Subject Area

0 380190 Feet

Legend
Subject Area

Tax Lots s371W28DD TL 900

146


	Cover Sheet 
	Agenda
	20.1 Final Order AC-20-021 
	Final Order E-20-108

	30.1 Minutes from the May 15, 2020, meeting
	50.1 Staff Report AC-20-097 Crater Lake Rentals
	Exhibit A Condtions of Approval (page 18)
	Exhibit B Site Plan (page 19)
	Exhibit C Floor Plan (page 20)
	Exhibit D Roof Plan (page 21)
	Exhibit E Elevations (page 22)
	Exhibit F Landscape & Irrigation Plans (page 23)
	Exhibit G Aerial View (page 25) 
	Exhibit H Zoning Maps (page 26) 
	Exhibit I Applicant's Findings (page 27)
	Exhibit J Public Works Staff Report (page 38)
	Exhibit K Fire Dept Report (page 48)
	Exhibit L Building Dept Comments (page 50)
	Exhibit M Medford Water Commission Report (page 52)
	Exhibit N Rogue Valley Sewer Services Letter (page 54)
	Exhibit O Jackson County Roads Letter (page 55)
	Exhibit P ODFW Email (page 56)
	Exhibit Q Rogue Valley Airport Email (page 57)
	Exhibit R City Surveyor Memo (page 58)
	Exhibit S Applicant's Letter of Map Amendment to FEMA (page 60)
	Exhibit T Account Info (page 84)
	Exhibit U Deeds (page 85)
	Exhibit V Irrigation Calculations (page 92) 
	Exhibit W Photos (page 97)
	Exhibit X Floodplain Memo & Firmette (page 103)
	Vicinity Map (page 106) 
	RECOMMENDED ACTION (page 16) 

	50.2 Staff Report AC-20-099 Joseph Office Park - Bldg III (page 107)
	Exhibit A Conditions of Approval (page 118)
	Exhibit B Overall Site Plan (page 119)
	Exhibit C Site Plan (page 120)
	Exhibit D Conceptual Grading Plan (page 121)
	Exhibit E Landscape Plan (page 122) 
	Exhibit F Roof/Floor Plan (page 123)
	Exhibit G Elevations (page 124)
	Exhibit H Applicant's Narrative, Questionnaire, and Findings of Fact (page 125)
	Exhibit I Public Works Staff Report (page 128)
	Exhibit J Medford Water Commission Report & Map (page 134)
	Exhibit K Fire Dept Report (page 136)
	Exhibit L Conditions of Approval from AC-01-047 (page 138)
	Exhibit M Original Master Plan AC-01-147 approved (page 140)
	Exhibit N Revised Master Plan approved per AC-15-097 (page 141)
	Exhibit O Ordinance 7161 approved by City Council 8-6-1992 (page 142)
	Exhibit P Resolution 7816 passed by City Council 2-2-1995 (page 144)
	Exhibit Q Lighting Plan (page 145)
	Vicinity Plan (page 146)
	RECOMMENDED ACTION (page 116)




